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2024 28

(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1911

TRP
(Nikko AM Offshore Funds — TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund)

10 1,569

1,000

2024 30 UFJ
156.90
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UFJ

https://www.sc.mufg.jp/products/trust/index.html

Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited

UFJ
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Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited
2018 24
FirstCaribbean International
Bank and Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited
2018 24
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
UFJ 2018 23
2018

)
2003 26

)
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() 2024
2024 480,000 7,531
156.90 480,000 156.90
1,000,000 1,000,000 5,690
)
2003 26
2009 27
)
2024
EC2V 5DE 480,000 100.00
40
Nikko AM Global Holdings (40 Basinghall Street, London EC2V 5DE,
Limited United Kingdom)
(

1925

50

150
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TOPIX
JPX JPX

MSCI-KOKUSAI

MSCI Inc.

MSCI Inc.

MSCI

MSCI Inc.

MSCI Inc.

NOMURA-BPI
FTSE

FTSE Fixed Income LLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC

FTSE Fixed Income LLC

JP GBI-EM

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
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a b
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2024
128,684,121.96 98.87
1,471,953.01 1.13
130,156,074.97
20,421,488,163 100.00
2024

us

4,227,467.87

26.42

111,690,882.07

30.44 128,684,121.96 98.87
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2023 2024

2018 12 31 50,551,939.00 7,931,599,229 9.12 1,431
2019 12 31 36,019,078.00 5,651,393,338 11.61 1,822
2020 12 31 111,427,243.00 17,482,934,427 15.31 2,402
2021 12 31 163,175,060.00 25,602,166,914 17.89 2,807
2022 12 31 91,585,112.00 14,369,704,073 10.88 1,707
2023 12 31 113,858,626.00 17,864,418,419 16.20 2,542
2023 108,918,697.18 17,089,343,588 13.83 2,170
111,392,388.00 17,477,465,677 14.59 2,289

112,771,306.67 17,693,818,017 15.07 2,364

112,171,916.00 17,599,773,620 15.06 2,363

106,299,026.65 16,678,317,281 14.39 2,258

10 103,363,928.94 16,217,800,451 14.02 2,200

11 112,900,518.88 17,714,001,412 15.57 2,443

12 113,858,626.00 17,864,418,419 16.20 2,542

2024 119,380,203.56 18,730,753,939 16.75 2,628
126,641,994.89 19,870,128,998 17.80 2,793

127,559,746.56 20,014,124,235 18.18 2,852

124,214,406.62 19,489,240,399 17.78 2,790
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2018 12 31 1,739,101,517 8,995
2019 12 31 1,390,992,944 11,126
2020 12 31 2,825,977,115 14,429
2021 12 31 1,738,994,808 16,726
2022 12 31 881,245,877 9,814
2023 12 31 1,049,831,255 13,693
2023 846,881,963 12,171
857,093,273 12,770

849,967,487 13,124

815,282,051 13,023

1,493,900,584 12,383

10 1,447,706,392 12,000

11 1,368,519,953 13,237

12 1,049,831,255 13,693

2024 874,790,845 14,082
819,667,390 14,893

960,768,508 15,125

935,010,640 14,719
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2024

-8.80 -10.05
27.30 23.69
31.87 29.69
16.85 15.92
-39.18 -41.32
48.90 39.53

100x%

10.00
10,000
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5,640,700 96,692 5,544,008
(5.640,700) (96,692) (5.544,008)
1,577,193 4,018,901 3,102,300
(1,577,193) (4,018,901) (3,102,300)
7,640,129 3,462,516 7,279,913
(7,640,129) (3,462,516) (7,279,913)
5,888,232 4,049,599 9,118,546
(5,888,232) (4,049,599) (9,118,546)
1,782,626 2,482,685 8,418,487
(1,782,626) (2,482,685) (8,418,487)
1,356,049 2,744,719 7,029,817
(1,356,049) (2,744,719) (7,029,817)
205,219 11,868 193,351
(205,219) (11,868) (193,351)
10,956 79,280 125,027
(10,956) (79,280) (125,027)
231,597 160,771 195,853
(231,597) (160,771) (195, 853)
34,383 126,267 103,969
(34,383) (126,267) (103,969)
25,675 39,850 89,794
(25,675) (39,850) (89,794)
62,662 75,787 76,669
(62,662) (75.787) (76,669)
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2023 12 31

TRP
2023 12 31
114,087,527 120,057,234 18,836,980
3,093,799 485,417
236,660 37,132
123,387,693 19,359,529
985,000 154,547
511,354 80,231
216,931 34,036
56,252 8,826
50,866 7,981
27,597 4,330
20,099 3,154
9,459 1,484
8,968 1,407
195,873 30,732
2,082,399 326,728
121,305,294 19,032,801
100,652,371 15,792,357
20,652,923 3,240,444
121,305,294 19,032,801
1,049,831, 255
76,669 13,693
113,858,626
7,029,817 16.20 2,542

156.90

47/193



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TRP

2023 12 31

92,216 14,469
92,216 14,469
730,992 114,693
314,889 49,406
64,296 10,088
33,738 5,293
30,651 4,809
16,879 2,648
11,253 1,766
102,482 16,079
1,305,180 204,783
(1,212,964) (190, 314)
(182,658) (28,659)
(805,929) (126,450)
(988,587) (155,109)
45,847,807 7,193,521
85,406 13,400
45,933,213 7,206,921
44,944,626 7,051,812
43,731,662 6,861,498

156.90
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(1,212,964) (190,314)
(988,587) (155,109)
45,933,213 7,206,921
43,731,662 6,861,498
5,185,814 813,654
19,470,809 3,054,970
(6,712,577) (1,053,203)
(38,634,415) (6,061,740)
(20,690,369) (3.246,319)
23,041,293 3,615,179
98,264,001 15,417,622
121,305,294 19,032,801
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43,731,662 6,861,498
(9,847,000) (1,544,994)
33,887,001 5,316,870

182,658 28,659

(45,847,807) (7,193,521)

(85,406) (13,400)
(74,702) (11,721)
(8,170) (1,282)
(42,382) (6,650)
2,843 446
7,894 1,239
(1,833) (288)
(9,172) (1,439)
7,380 1,158
21,902,966 3,436,575
24,656,623 3,868,624
(45,006,910) (7,061,584)
(20,350, 287) (3,192,960)
1,552,679 243,615
1,541,120 241,802
3,093,799 485,417
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2023 12 31 2023 12 31
9,814 10.88 1,707
(208) (0.14) 22)
4,087 5.46 857
3,879 5.32 835
13,693 16.20 2,542
39.53 48.90
1,049,831 113,859 17,864,477
1.82 1.12
(1.73) (1.03)

@
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TRP
2023 12 31
)
99.0
99.0
99.0
4,348,324 T R?We Price Funds fICAV - US Blue Chip 99.0 120,057,234
Equity Fund Class 1
114,087,527 120,057,234
120,057,234
114,087,527 99.0 120,057,234
1.0 1,248,060
100.0 121,305,294
(19,032,800,629 )
2023 12 31

)
13,912 Alphabet, Inc. <A~ 1.6 1,950,194
61,505 Alphabet, Inc. <C~ 7.2 8,687,543
70,904 Amazon.com, Inc. 9.0 10,881,580
58,713 Apple, Inc. 9.4 11,360,893
30,787 Microsoft Corp. 9.6 11,601,019

156.90
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( )

( )

( ) ( ) ( )
- 2024

Citi PB 26,066,056 30 (180,325) 5,376 5,376
. 2024

Citi PB 33,705,038 30 (234,373) 5,750 5,750
. 2024

Citi PB 1,048,066,502 30 (7,241,173) 225,534 225,534
Brown Brothers 2024

A

Harriman & Co. 527,556 30 (75,370,889) (9,406) (9,406)
Brown Brothers 2024

53 53

Harriman & Co. 2,995 30 (427,865) %) (3)

236,660 (9,459) 227,201
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NAV

GAAP
GAAP

ASU  2015-07
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2023 12 31

236,660 236,660
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236,660 236,660
2023 12 31
(9,459) (9,459)
(9,459) (9,459)
2023 12 31
FASB ASC 740
50
267,892 5,313
43
4,423,832 28 802,516
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SICAV
SICAV us
SICAV 2010 12 17
ucITS
CSSF
&P 400
)
)
c) > )
6,678,889 91,585,112 98,264,001
5,185,814 19,470,809 24,656,623
(6,712,577)  (38,634,415)  (45,346,992)
2,294,542 41,437,120 43,731,662
7,446,668 113,858,626 121,305,294
89,794 8,418,487 8,508,281
62,662 1,356,049 1,418,711
(75,787)  (2,744,719)  (2,820,506)
76,669 7,029,817 7,106,486
97.13 16.20
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c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2023 12 31 MNA
MNA
@
Citi PB 236,660 236,660
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2023 12 31 MNA
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2023 12 31
236,660 9,459
2023 12 31
(797,203) 85,406
0.28
0.03 2.5 0.25 2.5
0.24 0.22
2023 12 31 314,889 2023 12 31 27,597
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2023 12 31
30,651 2023 12 31 50,866
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0.015

2023 12 31
20,099

0.03

33,738 2023 12

0.65

730,992 2023 12 31

1,500
0.65



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

13
10
12
2023 12 31
14
15
2024 29
2024 2024 29 1,234,786
2,834,708
2024 2024 29 11,635,131
10,120,469
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TRPUS CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31, 2023

Eﬁmmudln United States Dollar, unless otherwise Indicated)
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darretr:

Eryemstrn arks i Underbying Pond, ot Fair value (oot of UES0 114,007, 537) LG THL05T 284
Ttk R e Ry
Uersalind spgraciation an ko rw ard foem g corminey sxhangs carersn 36,650
Totil aasadi 123,387 633
Lighiigiz:

Papablafor invemeniy puorchased GRS D00
Payablaf or Linite podiem el 511,354
Acread distntesor’sfees FALR E}
Agerusd professonal fees 56252
ol e oein Sl sk adomini o eor's fses 50,566
Astrygd m anagem end faey 27T
Anorued irusee fees 200
LUirdwali red depreciation on fore ard foreign aarendy enchange contracts pELL )
Aconsed sgent. oo pany s fees 0
A i St depeniEd 195873
Tornl babilties 1082 5503
Het Assets Ateributalls to Unithelder usp 121
danabyuin of Net Asieta:

P ins capatsl ED IDLEST 3T
Tl @ive nid davengs i datnbutisni HLESE SIS
Mt Assets Attbubabels bo Unitheldar M50 12

et Aspet Valus per Uni

1Y Hedged Closs Y 1043831155 + 76,660 Unay cut ganding i 13,633
IS0 Cles IS0 § 13 BER626 » 09517 Linits oot tanding] LED 16,30

The accampamying notes are an integral partof thess fnandal statements.
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TRPUS CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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IRvEitmEn | om g
T
Teaml Irvamm anl irdoss

Expenasd:
Dustributor’ s faes
Woluign b L
Prod gimonal feei
Agent company's fees
Ol desd b adden nimraton's lees
Truates lowi
Tranger agert fees
Cthes svparaas
Totw! Eipenses

et Invmitei ot Ladiga

Rualuwd gainefiosses ] and changs in lyad apgreci [l precistio m
Aaslized geingfomes)
e g it b of Lot yieng Fundl
Foruign currency transest ions. and forward foreign curmency sechange conbracts
Nt raalrad losoes
Tharge inurceshiced apprecsticn)Tdeprecation)
v ten et 5 i 0 cherd peneg Fund
Fdaign curningy tramiationd snd 1ore aed honingn currenty anchangs contracts
Kot crangein unnealined sppreciation
Fog realired and change i wresheed fosses snd apprecistion

Met Incraars im nart 3psete renuking from cperstion:

LD 92316
92216

730,953
ETRE-=]
Gl T8
mrm
30,651
68T
1183
102 453
1. 505 180

{182,658}

{605, 929 )
[T

45,047,807

H5 405
45,933 713
[

usp T

The accampamying notes are an integral partof thess fnandal statements.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Irereni s (Deoranie) in Met S pets Trom:

‘Dparaticns;

et inestmant losses

et i wd s

et charge i unroaliced sppresisbon

Hef incraase innet asset s resdting from operations

CapRal Transschinne:

Urat s immied
W Hediged Ciain (62667 Links)
LD Demn [ 1, 56,049 Un 5]

bty s ed
P Hadged Class (75, 78T Units)
LD Qi [, 744,715 Link )
Bhen o asE | DT BESEES Sasuling from Laginal FaRsaston g

Tetal Inerass in Net Asdets
(Het Assetic

Bagonirg af year
Bl &f vl

S0 {L212964)
(968, 387)

45,933 313

A9, 70 85D

5185814
(LY ]

{6, T12577)
{38634 415)
{20,690, 363)

23,040,293

2. 264003
LD §IL 305 75

The accampamying notes are an integral partof thess finsndal statements.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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Carhflows from apersting acthitios

T | 7 L DR E L RE RO Dt ong [175] 43, 731662
gl tmwngs to rmecercls the net inoreses in nat s ets remking from operstions to net cerh prosidaed by

Dparating BRAties:
Parrchuimy & wonem angs (9.84T.000)
Procids rom wsle nd maurty of FreRmarts 33807000
Healiced losres on iInvegmants n secunbies 1H265
Chirgpa A urrisl fed appreaalion on immdmantl (45847, BOT)
Change in urresiiced apprecetion on forsard fonesgn currency sachange contrads 5 406)
Changs in miiets and lishiitias relsted to epertisn:
D i b it Sl Belian B (ol Bl i o' Dindd (74,702}
(D PR ) RO e e Py s P B, 170)
D b dr il i@l diil (42,382)
Ergraping in mosrund moanagem ek fees Laa3
Encresss m socrued profesional fees T
Duxropse r scorued reg aration lee [LB33)
Diicrease n acorued fruston fees [N b ]
brcrease i BLCnd el other expenses %]
et cash provided by operating acthities 20,003 566
Caihflowa ui ed in firm g Briatie:
Procaids from Un e s 24656673
Papmpnd 4 on Units redeemed {45,006, S0y
Mt cndh ued in finansing actihitian {20360 IBT}
Met ingrabie in chih aod b ourraney 1552 579
Tt vl Pl g currancy it bagineeng of yenr L541 130
Carhard farign currency ot and of ysar uso 3055 T

The accampamying notes are an integral partof thess fnandal statements.
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TRPUS CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Selected Per Unlt Data and Ratios

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Deeemiser 31, DIZ3 Digoam ber 31, 2023

et Asorl WValie, Bagreing of Pon F 2814 LED 10 88

bt inves mant lppmsR! 208} {0 1)

et reaized and unreshized gains 4.087 S4B

Kef incrmase in net assed s resting from operations 16M0 [

et At Value, encdof year F i.'@’] LISk 16, 13

Toted rdtuen FA5T £8.90%
Aating Supplem prial deta

et it 5 aned of pear (0001 3) i LO&3BE31 LSO 113,855

Ratio of gxpenpes bo average ne apsmty LEI% L%

Ratin of et inestment fosses to average red aweets [T [LO%M

® Caloulatesd usn g seerage Linits oafstanding For the per

The sccampaming notes are an intagral partof thes: fnendal statements.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
PORTFOLID OF INVESTMENTS
December 31, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
Musn bee of % of Mat
Cumarey  Bhares Security Dei eription Al et FuirVahis
IBPSERTMENT B UHSOERLYING FUIND (59,805}
LR W UR G (950 5)
TQAEY FLINGD 19,3050
s 4382324 T Ao Price Funds SHCA A5 Blua Chip Equety Fund Cas [ 505 U0 10T
TOVAL LUKEMBOURG [Cost WD 118087,527) LD OST 23
TOTAL BVESTMENT B4 LBaDTRLYING FUND 120 157 ¥ 1
TOTAL BOVESTMENTS [Cos LISD 316087527} LT [T Y L]
CASH AN DTHER ARSETS BY EXCESS OF LIABILITES 18 128080
MET ASSETS 10 i LAD  IFLAmE

“Thasr s frw i v Dot Nl By b ievesin et Company Tor wineh thie Funed's geoporional i piruns 10 Th i r eeoeeds § peroent of re

assofs as of December 81, 2000 insedmants ane precemied n tabis beow,

Cumrerey  Shared Serurity Dascription

LED 13911 Alprabat, I &
LD E158% Akprabal, Ire. T
it ] 0,04 AAIEGA O, N
LED SBT1E Appla, e

D ILTET Microso® Comn

IPY Hedged €1a:s Farwaed Foreign Currerscy Bschangs Contract:

% of Pt

A et Fair Wialus
1E% (FL: L] 1,595,154
TI% usn BERT, 543
LN (£} i] E0A91.580
Ba% (EL: 11360893
A% 5o 11501015

Pt Unreallved

i s o i B 4 u B { ¥:

Buy  Counlerpaity Am ot Dma Sl Amount  Spprodation [Deprecistion) (Degracation]
Y CRIFR ISAE0%E  OL/RVI0E USD [A50,37%) S0 A WD = UED IR
TGPl LTSN OL/R00 D {TH4,078) .75 - =m0
Y CniFR 5,080 045,507 0L/ 2008 WD T2, LT 1554 - 215,504
S0 Brooen Brothars Harissn & Co 27556 DL/3R00E SRV {75,370, 49%) = 5, 805 [®.806)
UISD  Brown Brothers Hammaen & Oo LA DLSELAIO0E OV {417 96%) - [£X]] 53}

Curmerey lopard
E o I
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LSD JIGAED LED  [(Ras) b gy

The accompamying notes are an integral part of thess fimandal stabemants.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

ORGAMIZATION

TAF LS Core Growth Equity Fund [the “Fund®) is a series trust of the Nidoo AR Offshore Funds, an opsn-ended unit rust
esablished by o supplemantal rust deed dabed May 14, 2018 [the “Supplemnental Trust Deed”), under the laws of the
Cayrman Idands, Wideo AN Dfshore Fund s was established by a master orust deed dated October 15, 2012 (the “Master
Trust Dead”), under the laws of the Cayman Idands and is liomnsed with: the Cayman llands Monetary Authoring pursuant
b section &1 ){ah of the Mutual Funds Lawr [200% Bevision]. The Fund commenced operations on lune 35, 3018

The Fund's awets are managed on a day-to-day basls by Nido AM Global Cayman Umited fthe “Manager®}, The Manager
delegates imatmant managament dutes o MNikks Asset Management o, Ltd, {the “vestrent Manager™l The
Imvestment Manager rmary delegate responsibility for the managerment of the investrment and re-Imeestrienit of certain parts
of the Fund's imeesment portfoiio o other investreent managers. The aderanistration of tee Fund is delegated o Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (the “Custodian” and “Sub-Administrator”], alimited partnership organized under the laws of the
Srame of Mew York,

Tha investrrent ob factive of B Fund is to achiewe growth in the value of unit ower the long terrn By Irmeesting into a fund,
witiich Irwests maindy in a diversifled portfaio of stodks of lange and medium ded “plus chip® companies in the United
Srales,

Umder tha terms of the Supglermnsental Trust Desd and the Master Trust Died, RestCaribbean International Bank and Trust
Cornpary [Cayrnan] Urnited [the “Trustes” and the “Admini grator™} s named as Trustee of the Fund,

Tha Manager appoinisd Mitsubishi UF Morgan Stanley Securides Co,, Lbd toact as Agent Company (the “Agent Company™)
mnd to set Bs Distributer {the *Distributor”} of Units in Japan,

SUMMARY OF SCNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCES

The Fursd s an insearment Company that follows the sccounting and reporting guidence in FASE Accounting Starkdands
Codifipation 946,

Utpw of Eatirm ot

The sccormpaming fnandd statements hive bean preparad in accardance with scocunting principles gener dity acceptad in
the Uinisd Stanes of America ["LL5S GAAPY), The preparation of Enanoal smtementsin sccordancs with LS, GAAP reguires
the Fund's managament bo make estimates and assumptions that alffect the reported amounts of asets snd Esbilities and
dischrnres of contingant assets and lisblites st the date of the financid statements and the reported amounis of
renariess dnd expanes during the reporting pericd. Actual remdlts, induding tha ultimats amaunt realizad upon the e of
[ il irpestranes, could differ from thoss sstirmaes and such difarsnces may be sigrificant

Seauity and conbractusl transactions are recorded on a tradefcontract-date basis, Interest income is recordad on an
affmetive weld basis, net of oy applicabile wethhalding tx, Interest axpense and cther sxpendes sraracorded on an acirusl
basis Redized gains and losses from Seourity transscfons are camputed on the basisof the average cost of the sscurities
wld or covered, Thanges in the wauatfon of imestments are recorded in the Staternent of Operations &3 unrealized
appreciation of depredation,

Vrluaetion of investmaenity

IFreesitrmants in other imvestrent. companies (“hedge fundsT) sre viluad on the besis of the Net dsat Value [TAVT) per
share & reported by e adminfstrators of those entifes ot the meassrement date based upon policies and procedures
adopted by the Furd. 10 caves where the Fund could in the normal course of business redesrm its underdying imvestrment,
suich invegrmen ts are gener ity valued &t the net asset valuationsprovided by the adminisrators of those entifies.

In caxses where the Fund is unalble to redesm its underlying investment, such invesments In portfclio funds are also valued
at the net st valuations provided by the sdminfsrators of thoss entities, provided that the urderlying portfolio funds
hawe calodated their net assat valuations in accordance with accounting measuremsnt guidances which is applicable 1o
veshmen T cormpanies eg. investments within such underiying imvestment companies hae bean fair valued in sccordance
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF $GHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [¢ontinusd)

Viduation of lavestmaen s [contin ved)
with applicable LS, GAAP, unlags the investment Manager datermines that such a valuastfon weald not be the moest
sopropeiate indicator of fair valus, inwhich case tha invesement would e Far wabosd by the Irvestment Mansger,

In accordance with the authortative guldance on fair value mesmurernants and dsclosures under LS. GAAR, the Fund
discloroes the fair value of fts imvestmants in @ Werarchy that prioritines the inputs 1o waluadon techrigues used to Mmeasre
the fadr value, The Herarchy gives the highest pricrity to valuationg based wpon unadiusted quoted pricesin e tve markets
for idensical amsats or llabilices {Level 1 measurement) and tha lowsst pricrty to valuations based upon unobsenable
fnputs that are significant to the waluation (Leve 3 messurementsh. The guidance establishes three levels of the falr value
hderarchy as [olloawss

Level 1 — inpuns that reflect unadiusbed cuobed prices in active markers for identical irvestmenits that the Fund
has the abillty 10 acoess ol the mesurement date;

*  Level 3 = Inputs other than quoted prices that ore sgnificant and cbservable for the asset or liabiity efther
directly or indiractly, induding inputsin markers that sre not oonsiderad 1o be Bt

Levesl & — Ipwts that are Sgnifcant and uncbservable,

Irputs are used in apphying the various valuation technigues and broadly rafer to the ssumpthons thet marker participants
s b rakos vaduation dacidons, induding assumptions abour dsk nputs may include prize informatfon, acifc and broad
orachit data, fiquidiny stastics, and other factors. A nancial insmrumentslevel within the (air value Werarchny fs based upon
the loweest bevel of any input that is sigréficant o the falr value meamrement. However, the determination of what
cormiutes “shesrvable” reguires sgrificant udigment by the Investment Manager. The imaeitment Mansger cormsiders
obsenvable dat to be market data whith is readily svalable, regularly distributed or updated, reifable and verifisble, not
propristacy, and provided by independent sources that are actvely invalved in the rdevant mirket. The categorization of a
fimarscial ingtrurrant within the hiererchy s hased upon the pricng ramsparency of the instrument and dees not necessarly
coreipand o the evestment Manager’s parceived qoof thist instrument.

Irvestrments whose valu es are based on the quicted market prices in active markets, and therefore chacslfed within Level 1,
wiowld {mdude achvely traded squides, certaln LS government and soversign chiigations, and certain money macker
securites The imvestmant Manager wiould not adjust ®e guoted price for such instrumenis, even in siwat ons where the
Fursd hald & large postion and & sale could reasonably impact the quioted prica,

IFestmants that track in markers that are ot comsdenad 1o be sctive, but & walusd based on guoted ket prices,
dealer quotations of alternative pricing sources supported by chaenvable Imputs are dassified within Level 2, These include
Empestran tirada dabt securitieg, dhort-tarm imestments and Torward loceign currendy exchangs contracts As Leval 2
st ts inglude posithons that ane not traded in actve markets andfor are subiecr @ ransler restrictions, waluations
ey b ad juested T reflact liguidity andf'or non-ranshersbility, whith are generally based on svailabl e market information.

Irestrmants dasdfied within Level 3 hove sgrilicant unobservable inputs, as they would trade infrequentdy, Level 3
nstruerents would indude asetbadied securities and collateralized morgage cbligations. As chservable prices are not
ovalable for these securitio, the Fund would uss wluatisn pedhmigues to derive the (air valua

Tha inputs or methodaogy used for valuing securities are not necessarily mn indication of the risk asmodated with investing
i heca pouries,

Ir Becordance with AT 2015407, the Fund's investmaent in other investrment companies hirs not Been cotegosied in the
fair walue hisrarchy nor in a roll forward of investment activity,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF $GHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [¢ontinusd)

Viduation of lavestmaen s [contin ued]

Tha followsing table presents s finandad instrurmants carded on the Staternant of Aseets and Liskslitdes by caption and by
vl within the valustion erarchy as of Decernber 31, 2023 Further dasdfications of the finandal Ingrumens are
presented in the Portfollo of Imeestmants,

Beiiats 5t Fair Valus Fair Valus s
Levall Lervel2 Lewel Cwcom bar i, 200
Forward Forsgn Curency
Exthrpe Contrad i LD - =D I36,660 LD - [u] 13&61
Total TEY] - LD J36.660 LED - L&D FEZ
Lishiimies a1 Fair Value Fair Value o
Leswied 1 Lervell 2 Ll 3 D cambar 31, 223
Forwsrd Foregn Curency
E:Hmurm- IJiD - LE_D 15\,15_5# LED = LD 15‘ I55i
Total Wip = 1] {3459) LD N LD {Ha58)

Curing the year ended Cecember 31, 2023, there were no tramsfersin or out of Lewel 1 The Fund®s pdicy is & detenmine
IMEI“ and e Al ransfers as a1e year end date,

Foreign Currency Transotion

Azzets and liabilides had in asrendes other than United Sates Dollar {*USEE o the “Functiona Currency™] are trandated
o B Furctional Currancy &t the rate of achargs pravailing st e financid saterment data, Incorna and mpensss oe
trarslated at the rate of exchange prevaling at the date on whith the income or expense is incered. Realized and
wredized gains and losees adsing on forsgn currency ransactions are induded in the Statement of Operations in the
period inwhich thesy oocur.

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resuling from changes in foreign exchange rates on
immshmen s from the Aucuations arising from dhanges in market prices of seaurities bald, Such fluctstiors sre incuded
with the net realized and unrealized gain or boss from investments.

Ineome Toxes

Linder the cument laws of the Cayman [dands, there are no income, withholding, capital gains or other taces payable by
the Fund, In certaln jurisd ctions cther than the Cayrman Bland s, forelgn taees may be withheld at source on dividends and
interest received by the Fund. Capital gaing derived by the Fund in such jursdictions generally will be exerrpt from foreign
income o withholding taces at source. The Fund inbends to conduct it affairs such that Towil not be aubject toincome e
in oy jurisdiction. As a resslt, no prosision for income tawes has been made in the financia statements. Unithaldears many
e taorad o their proporiionats shire of the Fund's tax basisincomes basad on their indvidus circumstances,

The Fud foilons e authonbative tu'dm-ce an socaunting for and disdosure of uncertanty in te posttions [Fnanda
Acoounting Standards Board [*FASE") - Accounting Stondards Codification 240), whidh reguires the Manager to determine
whether & tix position of the Fund is more likely than not to be sstsined upon examination by the applicable xing
authority, indudng resclution of any related appeals or itigation procasses, based on the tedhnical merits of the posidon
For tam positions mesting the more likely than nat threshold, the tax benafit recognized in the finandal statements is
reduced by the langest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being reafized upon wWiimate setioment
with the relevant taxing suthority. The Monager fhas daterrnined that there js minimsl o no affect on the fnancial
statermenits being under this asthortative gul dance.

Forward Forelgn Currency Exchan ge Controcts

The Furd may enter into forward forsign aumenoy exchange contracts to hedge against foreign cumency emchange rate
rigks on all or a portion of non-USD denominated invesments o for effident portfalio mansgerment purposes, When
entering into & forward foraign arrency exchange tontract, the Fund agrees to receive or defiver a fiwad quantity of
forelgn cumency for an sgreedwupon price on an agreed future date, These contracts are valued daily, and the Fund’s nes
equity therain, represanting uncealized apprecistionfdepraciation] on the contracs & messred by the difference
betwaen the forward foraign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracts and the fonward rates at the
reporting date, isinduded in the Statement of Assats and Labilities. Realized and unrealized gains and |osses are induded
in the Stavement of Operations.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [¢ontinusd)

Forwird Farelgn Curren oy Exchan ge Controcts [can Bai )

These Instrements rmclve marset risk, oredit risk, or both kinds of fisks, In exces of the amownt reccgrized in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilitien Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their
convtracts and from movernent in curmendy and securltes values and intenest rates. In addidon to the Gas level hedging,
ther Fund had realized gain of USE 5212 on 2 forward foreign asrency exchange contract during the year with an average
nodona of USD 267,552 and an seerage term 1o maturity of B days. The Fund olso had net realiped loss of LSD 802,516 on
43 forward foreign curency exchange conftracts held at the [P Hedged Coss level during the year with an average
natforal of L0 4,423,532 and an average term 1o maburity of 28 days,

Carsh and foreign currency comprises all curency held with Browm Brothers Harriman & Co,, and cwernightt and other short
bermn placam ants wikth other inarcia institutions.

IFVESTRMENT IN THE UNDERLYING FUND

Tha Fund shall primarily invest in shares of US Biue Chip Equity Fund [the “Undarhying Fund®], a sub-fund of T, Bowe Price
Fumds SICAV, a soddtd dirwestissement b capital varlable [“S00AV™) established under the lows of Liembourg. The SICAY
gualifies as an Undertadng for Collective invvestment in Transferable Securities ("UCITST] under Part 1 of the Lusemibourg
Loy of December 1T, 2010 on undertakdng 5 for colective Inmestrnent | the "2010 Law™) and is registersd on the offidal st of
ool ec thse investment undertsdngs mantained by the Cormission de Sunvelllance du Secteur Fnander |*55557).

Tha chjective of the Uinderiying Fund is 1o increase the value of its shares, over the long term twough growth in the value
of lts irvestrnents, by imesting mainly in a diversified porefollo of stocks of lange and medium szad “blus chip™ compandes
in the United States

Specifically, the Underying Fund imrests prirmarily in equity snd equityrelated securifes of companies that are efther
Incorporated in the United States of Amedca o conduct most of thair business there, that hunve 8 markel capitalisation
equal 1o of greater than the comparies in the Russell Mid-cap Index or 58P Wid-cap 400 Index, and that have a leading
market position, seasonsd management and srong fnancial fundamenialn Types of securities may include common
siocks, preferred stocks, wamants, American Depository Recelpts {“ADRs"), Evropean Depository Receipts (“E0Rs") and
Global Depositeny Receipts [TGDRS )

Ir seeking 1o achisve the Underlying Fund's cbjective the Undarlying Fund may also invest, on an anclilary basls, in other
aligible securities o5 describad In fts prospechus, this may Include effigible seourities from cther countries, o mone than a
Frripad exterl

Tha Underiyirg Furrd may wuse derivatives for hedging and e ficient portfolio rmanagernent,

The Underlyirg Furd's fnandal sistements sre prepared under generally acospited accounting principles in Luocemboung
and the acoounting poicies of the Underlying Funds are substantally consistent with those of the Fund Units of the
Uncarhying Fund may be radeermed e sach Bursiness Day.

UNITS

The rest astets of the Fuad are divided into IPY Hedged Ot Units and USD Oass Unies, The Linits are denaminated in
lapanase Yen and Uinited Soates Dodlar, JPY Oass Units and LED Class Unics are avalable 1o an diginle tnvesor who is anvy
perdon, corparation o entity which is not [] 8 “US nvestors” [ defined below); {iT) @ parson of entity resident or
daricilad fn the Coyrman tlands [exduding ey chject of a charftabls trust of pownsr oF an axempted of mron-resident
Cayrnan lilands companyd; i} unalile to subscribe for o hald U‘Jhm"ﬂ'mtﬁﬂaﬁrg spplicable laws; and iv) & custodan,
N, OF (rustee for ey person, corporation or entity described im (7] Do (i) abowve, or ach other pereons, corporations
o eriitias o detarmmined from time to time by the Manager, with the approwsl of the Trustes,

‘While all or absmntialy all of the assets of the Fund may be hald In LS. Dollars, it Ts intended for the Fund 1o enter into
hadging arrargemants for the bemalit of JPY Hedged Oass Units, which are dencminated in lapaness Yen, Thoge
arangements will be to hedge agalnet advarse movernants of the cummency of dencmrination of the immestments in the
Saries Trust relative to Yen Ary profits, gaine, |osses, oodts, income and ependiture assodated with such hedging
arrangemants will be borne by 7Y Hadged Class Unite
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

UNITS |comtivu ad)

For the year ended Decerrber 31, 2023, the notional sapossre on the JFY Hedged Olass forward currency exchange
CoMracts approximated the s age net assets for JPY Hedged Class being net long IPY and short LD, Open contracts at
yaar and are discdosed in the Portlailio of Investrienta

The Manager may detemine to [s=ue one or morne classes of Units of the Fund without prior notice to or writhen consent of
e Linithalders.

A of e netassets aTeibutable 1o JPY Hedged Class Units and USD Class Units are held by one Unithodder,

JEY Hediged Chaaa. WD Dmdd Tots Fund

Hatance ot December 31, 2063 [T=1] BETHBEY USD  SLSA511F MO 96364001
Suh gt 3 i rg the yaw £ IS B 19, 470803 A BSEETT
Hepcemptions duting tha resr {6 71LE77) {3863LAL5) {45, 346.582)
et increass innet asset s resdt ng from operations 2,294 542 AL AT 130 A0 FRLGET
et Aszerts ot Decombeer 31, 2073 Wil TAd6.668 LAD  1ILASHENE LD 11L30S M
Mumber of Lints i iprue ot Decemiber 31 2022 09,784 BaL T 0.508, )
Ubrsts instind dunieg the year BLELT LASE DS Lea1aTy
Uity redeem wd during the yesr e 0] fLTaATLOY (2020506}
Humbier of Uiniti m iz o Decemiber 31, 3023 To.6EH AL T 106455
gt Astat Viskse pr Lint o Dacember 31, 2020 [5.54] 9713 LD 160

Suhroriptions for Unity

G0 Cass Unitswere subscribed for by Bigible imeegors dusing the Inftal Offer Period at the inidel purdvase peics of LED
10000 per Urit. JPY Hedged Qass Urits were subscribed for by Eligitde investors dusing the bnitid Offer Period at the nital
purchass price of IFY 10,000 par Unit The Inidal Cffer Pericd commenced on June 18, 201 Band ended on June 27, 2018 In
addition 1o the whsoiption prices, the applicant shal pay & sdes chage coleulated ot up to 3% (exduding ary e
applicainle] of tha purchase price, 12 the Distributor., Thees wiere no sales dharges paid during the year ended Decamber 31,
2023

Curing the initial Dffar Paricd, the mnimum subscription for LED Osss Units per subscriber was 10 Units or more, and in
menitiples of 1 Unit thermalter, During the retal Offer Pedcd, the minimurn inftial subscription for [PY Hedged Oass Units
per ubieriber was 1 Lindt & mons, and in muttiples of 1 Units Sharedfer,

O arvd after the inidal Cosing Day, the minimem subscaiption for USD Oass LUnits per Unitholder [5 either 10 Urits or
mars, and in rmidtples of 0001 Urdts tharaafter or LSD 100, and in multiples of LUSD 001 thersalter, On and alfter the
Iritial Jodng Dy, the minimem subeription for JPY Hedged Class Units per Liitholder 5 elther 1 Unit or more, and in
wrmaltiples of 0000 Lt therealter or JFY 10,000 and in rultipbes of 1PY 1 thereadter,

Tha Manager may waive o change the minirmem initial and sdditional subseription smounts set forth sbawe i its sole
discretion from Sme 1o e

Linit Redemptons

The Fund recogries raderrptions in stcordance with the authoritative guidance on distinguishing liabiities from eaquity.
Radernpiions, wissther expreserd as United States Dollar, lapaness Yen of Units, are recognized as fabdities when each of
the lapanede Yen and United States Dollar Unit smounts requested in the redempticn notioe becomes Bxed, which
ganerdly mEy octur ather & the tme of the recsipt of the notice, or on the let day of & fiscal year, depending on the
naature of the reguest. b a reudt, edemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year and net msets ae
reflacted as redempticng payabl & o1 Decervher 31, 2023, There were LED 511,354 of redemgitions payable as ot Decarber
31, 203 included a8 Payable for Unitsredenrned in the Statement of Assets and Liabilifes.

Kepurchose of Unity
LiTs msy be repuenchased o1 the aption of Linithalders on sach Reporchese Doy {rrssns. sach Valustion Day, of such other
iy or darys &% the Manoger may from time to tme da terrmines in respect of the Series Trust).

Uritholders wishing, to have Units repurchased must send & completed Repunchase Notice to the Distibutor so a5 to be
reaceived by the Distributer o [ater than 300 pam, (Tokyo tirme) on the relevant Repurchass Dy, The Cistribaton will send
the compleated Repurchase Motices bo the Sub-Admind grator by nd later than 6200 pom. [Tokyo Sme) on the relevant
Repurdhass Day or by asch other frme a8 the Sub-Adminisirator may in any particulsr case detarmine.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

UNITS |comtivu ad)

Repurchoae of Units [continoed)
I the refewant Repurchase Notice is not received by the Sub-Administrator by the relevant time, the Repurcharss Motice will
bz held ower untl the nexst Repur chase Cay and Units will then be redesmed at the rdevant repurdhase price applicable on
that Repurchase Cay, In the event aither the day after the relevent Dealing Doy or the doy faling two days after the
relevant Dealing Diay is & day on whidh barks or stodk exchanges In lapan are not open for nonmal business, oy
Repurchase Notice recsived on such Dealing Day, shall not be accepred and instesd, wil be agcepted on the next Dealing
Dy,

A Repurchase Notice, once given, [simevocable,

Compulsary Redemption

Im the svent that the Trustes of the Manager shall deterrine that any Units of any class of & Fund are being held by or for
the benefit of a person who Inotan Bigitle imvestor for such Fund or that such holding would cause the Trust or the Fund
1o b regquired 1o register, be saubject bo T or violate the lews of any jurisdiction, o If the Trustes or the Manager has
raason to doubt the legitimacy of the scurce of monies used to fund the subscription or purcharse of such Units, or for
whatever reason fivhich may not be disclosed by the Trustes or the Manager to Unitholders) thar sue Trustee o the
MNanager considers appropeiate at Its absciute dioretion having regard 1o the interests of the Unitholders of the relevant
Qass o the Unitholdars of the Fund as a whals, then the Mansger, alfter consultation with the Trustes, rmay direct the
hokder thereof (o g2l (ubject o the provisions described below in the secton headed *Translfer of Units®) uch Unis
within 10 days and provide 1o the Trustes and the Manager evidence of such sale, falirng which the Manager may redesm
sch Liniits,

Temminotion of the fund
Lipan termenation, the Manager will raslize all the astets of the Fund, and after paing out o retaining adequats provision
for al liabilities properly payable and recairing provsion for the costs of the terminaton, the Trustes shall Eseribute the
provesds of that redimtion to the Linithalders propartionately to thair respactive interests in the Fund & of the date of
termination of te Fund.

Cirtributions te Linitholdes

The Manager may, in it sole discretion, dedare distributions and no guérantee is made that these will ke place,
Cistribution will be daclared annually on each Disribution Record Date and calculated on each Ex-Distribution Cate,
Distribution Period is & period commendng from the clendar day fellowing the preceding Distribution Record Date and
ending on and induding the Cistribution Record Dace, The duributions wil be paid on the relevent Dladbuton Pawrent
Ciate, provded that much arount (i amy) dedared with reipedt bo the relegant Qs of Lkt in respact of the appiicable
Distributicn Pariod shall only be pald cut of the Fand™s et incorms, redited and uneedized capitel gaing and any
distributabie funds of the Fund attributable to such Qassof Lnitsas determined by the Manager.

The dedaration of distributions to Unitholders reduces the Olass Level Nat Asset Value per Unit withaut any correiponding
change in the number of Oass Leved Units per Unitholder, This results in a Uinitholder's overall Investmant in the Fund
being reduced, in addition, any distributions during & Oigribution Period which are in sices of the Funds net incrasss in
net assets resuling from operations results in a portion of the distribution being retum of capital.

The amount of distributions, if amy, will ba deterrined by the Manager in its sole disoretion, and o represantation or
guarantee is made that adistibution will be made in regpect of each or any Distribution Period,

Capitalization

The Met Asset Yalue per Unit is caculated for each Desling Day {=ach Valustiion Day, or suich other day or days a5 the
Manager may from dme to time deterrine in respect of the Fund), by diiding the difference in value between the Fund's
asets and liabilities [ndud ng accrued fees and expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units outstanding.

The Trust Deed stipulates that the number of Lnits to be isseed in the Fund shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
detenmine andd shall b without par value,

DERIVATIVE FINANCAL INSTRUMENTS
Acoounting Standard Codificaton (A0 B15:10-50 requires dsclomures about derivative instruments and hedging acivites
Itreguires that the Fund discioses a) heow and why an entity uses derivative instruments, b how derfvative instruments and

relmted hedged items are sccounted for and <) how derivathve instruments and related hedged items alfect an sntioy's
fimancial posd tion, Anandal performance and cash flows,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

DERFVATIVE FINANCLAL INSTRUMENTS [ ontinaad)

Tha Fnd tramsects forward derivative instruments primarly Tor hedging purpotes with sach instrument’s primary risk
espopse baing foreign axchange risk, The fonmand foreign ourrency exchanga contracts hld by the Fund do not gualify as
hedges for secounting purposes under the requisements of ASC BLS, The fair value of these derivative instruments is
incligded in the Staterrsent of Assets amd Liabilides with charges in fadr value reflected as reafized gaing{lossesh or net
change in unreal bed appceciationdepraciation) on derivativeswithin the Soaterment of Operations [Mots 2).

Tha Fund may snter into &n intermational Sweps &d Derivative Assodstion, Inc Master Agreement (71504 Mmter
Agrearnant’] with it counterparties in cnder o mitgate countevparty rige The [S0A Master Agresmnent is typically
regotinted by the Fund and it counterparted, contairing the bidsteral terrs and conditions for all subsegquent derivative
rarsactions, The S04 Master Agreament ailiws for the nerting of all amoun s owed 19 oF dus rom coanvtarpany Nt a
sirgle net payment i & oredt svent o default should occwr.

The Furd has dactad tonot ot e valus recenables and payables for desfvative contracts on the Face of the Statemant
of Assets and Uabilities

At Decomber 21, 3002 the Fund had entered into the following derivadive asssts by counterparty net of amounts avalable
for offest under & Master MNetting Agresrment [“hiC) and net of any collateral received by the Fund:

Derivative fasets  Derbouiive M- cashy Caih Mt i eniret o
Counterparty Subject to 3 M _Avadsble for Offset Collateral Eecetved Collatersd Aecebed Derhethe Asvets®
0 Ph WD 236660 LG = LD = LED = LHG o 36, €5
Total UsD u - 5D - UsD - USD __ ZEE6GO

At December 31, 2023 the Fund had entered into the following derlvative llabilifes by counterparty net of amounts
avaslable for cffsat under & MNA and net of oy colfatersl pladgad by tha Fund:

Mat Amount of
D ashoukhos Liabdtier Derbativer Hon-caih Cath Derdvathes

Counterpasty Sulsjert 1o 8 MMS  Swvalsble far Ofser Collataral Pladged  Collsters] Medgad Lishilinias’
BrownBrothers Marismen & G0, USD 9485 LIS - LED - 0 - LD 9455
Total uso 9459 USD - w5 = Wio - W50 9453
Ut i et aguials Uh Ft i cent receirabl /s e iiie fom th countarparty in che evem of defauk,
At Dacernbear 31, 2003 the Fund had entened into the following derivasives:

i gt Darbartivag Lighiity Darkatime
Dgribrathr Statement Statament
Mot B aoated for s iof s raty sl of Brpets wnd
Hethging Ini trum ents Liakilkiai Lesasian Fakr Vahae Lishiiie: Laestisn Favir Valus
Forward forsign ormency Unneshoed e i abon Wrwanl red depretistion
e rchange pertract o lareard farsign o Porwed laragn
{Cirincy Rik ) carngncy mnchon ge LD TIEED  ourrenty excherge LG 4459

%Ulﬂ.l OAT acks
Th eflmctof de mvate indtruenents on th Statermentof Dperatons for the yesr énded Decermbiar 31, 2023
Darbatived Mot
Becourted Lecation of Epaliiad Chisrege in Urraaked
or 33 Hadging G or {Loaa) Galn or {Loss) dppraciation or {Depredation) on
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

The Manager is entifed to receiwe out of the sesets of the Fund & management fee of a totd of wp to 0.28% per annum
{0L05% per anniumn [n respect of the fee Tor the Manager and 0, 25% per anrum for the portion of the Met Asset Value up o
L0 250 milion, 0. 28% per annum for the porfion of the Net Asset Value ower LISD 250 million up to LIS0 500 million and
0.22% par aroum for the portion of tha Met Aset Value over LED 500 millon in respect of Tee for the Investmeent
Manager) of the Net Amet Value acorved on, and calculated a5 at, sach Valuation Day and payable monthly Tn amears. in
aidition, the Manager is also endted to be reimburssd cut of the assecs of the Furd for any sxpenses incurred by it in the
proper perforrmance of its powers and duties aspermitted under the Master Trust Desd.

During the year ended Decervber 31, 1023, the Manager earned fees of LED 314,859, of which USD 7,247 {5 stll
outstanding as of Decernber 31, 2023,

The Manager will pay the fees of the Investiment Manager cut of its fees. The Imvestment Manager will be responsible for
paning the fees of any of Fs delegotes or other parties appointed by the Imvestment Manager to perionm its functions in
raspact of the Fund; provided, howewr; the Invegtmant Mansger may charge a transaction fes on the substriptions and
rademptions of sharesof the Underhding Fund,

CUSTOMAN AND SUB-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has a custedy and accounting agreement with Brown Brothers Hariman & Co. [the “Oustodian™ and “Sub-
Adrrincarator”) for which the Custodian recsives b fee calculstad and paid monthly Based on total ssests and ransaction
wolume

Tha Qustedian and Sub-Aderdnistrator is entided to recsive out of the aseats of the Fund an admenisration fee [induding
ransfer mgent fee) on the Nat Asset Valus sccrued on, and calaulated o3 at, each Valuation Dy ot the following snmual
e

- T Reup b (e incheding] LISD 250 million;

- Nup o (and including] LISD 500 milliom;

- D5 cwer LISD 500 rrlion,

Such adminisration fes is payable monthly in arreary, and subject to the minimum anmesl fee of USD 60,000, The Sub-
Adriniprator i oaleo entided o recsive cut of the assmis of the Fund fees for currency admirsstration and sseution
seriions t the rate of 0055 per annum of the Net Aset Yaiue of the rdevant Unit Dass, subsjact to the minimum snrus
lee of USD 50,000, 1n additon, the Custodian and Sub-Administrator is also enfded 1o receive custormany saleleeping lees
ad ransaction charges All cut-of podket expenses of the Custodien and Sub-Administrator shall dso be borne by the
Fumd, Curfng the year snded Decarnber 31, 2023, the Custodian e Sulb-Administrator sarnad fees of LED 30,651, of
wbich USD 540,866 15 sill outitanding asof Decernber 38, 2023,

TRUSTEE FEES AND ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Trustes 5 entitfed i redeive out of the mmsets of the Fund a combined fes ot the rate of (.01 5% par arnurn of the Nat
Asger Valee socresd on, and colodated s at, each ¥alustion Dy and payalile gusrterly in arrears, subject 0 8 mirmum
anrusl fam of LED 15,000, During e yasr andad Decarmbar 38, 2023, the Trostes asmead faadof USD 16 ETD, of which LED
20,094 5wl cutstan ding a8 of Depemiber 31, 2023,

AGENT COMPANY S FEES

Tha Agent Corrparmy is entided to receve out of the maets of the Fund & fes 82 the rate of 0,03% per smum of the Net
Amat Value acoued on, and caloulated o= af, sach Yaluation Doy and payabl & guarterdy in aresrs. During the year ended
Decernber 31, 2023, the Agent earmed foes of USD 33, TAE, of which USD B 968 is still outstanding asof December 31, 2023,
DISTRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Distributor Is entfded 1o recelve cut of the assets of the Fund a fee at the rate of 055K per annum of the Met Asset
Value serusd on, and calodated a3 o1, exch Vauaton Doy and peyable quarterdy in arears, During the yesr ended

Decernber 31, 2003, the Distributors sarmed fees of UBD 730,992, of which USD 216,931 ia sl cutstanding a6 of Decsmber
34, 2023,

77/193



EDINETOOOO

O0O00000000O0oonognognoOonod(e27078)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES
Thea Adrainistrator receives LSO 1, 500 per armurn for FATCA Jf CRS complisncs services

Tha Underlying Fund is entitied to recaive out of the assets of the Undertying Fund, & fes a1 she rate of 00655 per snnum of
the Nt Asset Vil of the Undarlying Fund,

FINANCIAL FSK MAN AGEMENT

The Furd's activities espose It oo variety of fnandal rigics: masiget rish [ind uding price risk, interest rate risk, and ourrency
risk}, credit risk ard liquidity sk,

Market ik
Al invegrrants present o risk of loss of capital, The Investirment Manager moderates Sisnise through a careful selecgion of
secir tes andd other §nancal Tnstruments,

The Fund”s Imeestment management process is described In Mote 1. The primary determinant of the Fund's abllity to meet
its ohiective of mid to long verm capitl appreciation while saming income s dependent on the performance of the
Emvestment in the Underlying Fund. The Fund's overall market postions are monitored on a dally bas's by the Fund's
Irmestmmant Manager.

The vedues of the Furd's imesrnents are alfected by 8 rumber of factors, induding but nog Emited o, changes in the wider
economy, finandal and currency markars, forsgn curmency exchange rate 5 and Interest rate movemants. The Fund enters
fnto forward contracts which to varying degrees represent a market risk in excess of the amount reflected on the Fund's
Staterment of Assets and Uabiities. The notonal amount of the forward contract represants the exent of the Fund's
partcipation in thes financial instruments. Markat risks sssociated with such forsard confracts arise due to the possible
miosements in Tordign cumrency exchang e rages undseriying thess insrumens,

Cither market and credit isksindude the possl bty that there may ba an llliguid market for the contracts, that the change
in the vals of the contract may not directy corrdate with changes in the value of the underiying cumendes or that the
tounterparty w8 forward contract defauts on s cbligation to parform under the terms of the contract, The Fund's
exponre to foss due to counterparty nonqperformance on open fubures, forwand foreign cemency exchange, swap and
options contracts is limdted to the unrealized appredation inherent in such financlal insruments which are recogrézed in
thee Staterresnt of Agsets and Uabilites

Cradie Rigk

Credit risk represents the potentia loss that the Fund would inowr if the counterparties, failed to perform pursuant 80 the
tarms of their cbligations 1o the Fund, For sichange-tradad contracts, the emchangs &0ts & the counlerparty o dpeaific
transactions and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and from counterparties of spedfic positions. The Fund's
managarent doss not corsider that credt risk relabed te cpen derivative contracts will kine material sdverse sffect on the
finarcial conditicn of the Fund.

Mthough the Manager monitors the Custodian and befeves it to be an appropriste custodian, there is no guarantes that
this or ' custodion that the Fund may uss from tme B Bme, will not Becama insolvent, whith could lead o lesms for
e Fumd.

‘While both the LS Baniowp toy Code and the Securities inwestor Frotection Act of 1570 seek to protect customer property
in the svent of & falure, nsclvancy o gl dation of an institution, thers is no cartmnty that, in the event of & fallure of an
Institution that has custiody of Fund aspets, the Fund would not incur losses dse 1o its assets being urenailable for a period
of time, wtimatay less Sen il recovery of its stsats, or both, Becarse all of the Rnd's cash @ in oestody with & Single
institution, such losses coudd be sgnificant and could matedally impalr the ability of the Fund o achieve its irvestment
chjectva The Fund is subject to credit risk 1o the extant that this institution meay be unable to fulfill its obifgations to repday
armouns owned.

Liquiofty Risk
Imvestors should be mware that the value of Units might fall as well 25 rise. impeitrnent in the Fund imedlves a degree of risk,
there can be no asurance that the Fund's imvesment ohjective will be adaved.

The Furd is exposed o daily repurchase of its Unfts but manag ement. belteves that the Fund has sufficient resources to
maat the prisent and foreseesble needs of i busines cparations and, If necasary, the liquidity to fund repurchases and
achieve a market posiion appropristely reflecting a smaller copltal base, This podtion Is monlored condnually by
mHnag arent (o ensure that the Fund has the ability to meet its obligations.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

FINANCEAL RISK MANAGEMENT [¢ontinued)

Ligualafity Riek {oontinwed)

Tha Trustee, alter consultadion with the Manager, may suspend the issusnce and repurchase of units and payments in
respect of mech ransactions in any drourmstances whare the calculation of the Underlying Fund's Met Assat Vialue per unit
5 mapended, The Trustes will inform unithal ders of aich 8 sepansion a5 soon Bs practicabrle after It Ts imposed or Bfted,
Swbgeription applichtions and repurchass notices camnot be withdrawn during such wuapersion and will be provessad for
the next Dealing dave, All Unitholders of she Fund will be promoily moti€ed inowritng of amy such suspendon and will be
prompthy notifiad upon termination of wich suspandon,

Corrency Rid

The Linik price of LES Qam Unitsis deterrnined in USD, and the Undt price of 18 Hedged Class Lints isdetermined in lapanese
Yar while the Fund is dencrninated in LS dollars The Fund, however, may imvest & portion, or o of, its assets in other
umenges, or in instruments denominated in non-lapanese Yen or noneLIS Dollar oemendes, te prices of which will be
determnivued with refensnos to suth mon-lapanete Yin or non LS Doller curmencies, The walue of the Fund's assets will Tuctuste
with |apanese Yen echange rates s well as the price chang es of its invesmemn zin the variousioca markets and urnendes

The Fund also may wtlize cptions and forward coniracts to hedge against cuevency fluctuations, but there can be no
amrance that such hedging ransatfons wil be effective, and such technigues entall costs and addiional rigos

The inwesrrent Manager o iors the Furid § s ency exponura on 8 daly basis
BORACWINGS

The hlh'lq:rmdfc\r its delegates may borrow monies for the acoount of the Fund prosided that it will not bormow money
if, ata resdt of such bosrowing, the sggregate amaunt of cubtanding bormrowings elfected on behall of the Fund would,
Eremadionaly following such borrowing, excead 10% of the value of its net sesets, seve that this limitmey be exceadad
termpararily for a period not exceeding 12 months in secid stusations including, without limitstion, a merger of the Fund
with anather s es trust, imsestraent fund or other type of colled tve imestment scheme,

Therewera no bomrowings during the year ended Decernber 31, 3033,
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal oourse of business, the Trestes on behall of the Fund may ater into conbracts that contain & waristy of
represantations and warranties and which prowide general inderenifications. The gensral indaroi ficafons spply not only m
e extent such represeniations and wanrant es are un e but also may cover thind parties sudh as the Fund's Adminisirator,
Papcliter or inssestrrent Manager for dairrn related te the sendoes performed for the Fund, The Trustes"s rasirnum expomrs
under ary fuch ETANGSMANTE 5 UNknown, a5 exposure cnly arises Lo the extent future daims: that have not yet coourred ane
Friache s mnnl the Trostes, Howassr, bated on sxparisnds, 1h Trustes epacts the ritk of loss toba remate,

SIBSECQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events review U to May 6, 2004 which [s the date the financia statemants were
avalable tobe issued,

Effective lanuary 1, 2024 chrough May 3%, 2004, there were subsoiptions of LSO 1 334 7585 and there were redemptions
of LED 2,834,708 In respect of JPY Hedged Olass Units, There wera distributl ons of nil in respact of IPF Hedged Olass Units

Effecgve lanuary 1, 1024 through May 26, 2024, thare were subsoriptions of US011,635,131 and there were redemptions
of LBD10.1 20,459 in respact ol LGD Cliss Units There wers S atributions of nil in respect of USD Oess Urits,

Thare ara no other SEniSemt ssnts i rapartas thy ralats i the Fund,
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2022 12 31
TRP
2022 12 31
137,325,186 97,447,086 15,289,448
1,541,120 241,802
157,201 24,665
99,145,407 15,555,914
259,313 40,686
171,272 26,873
125,568 19,702
48,358 7,587
29,271 4,593
24,754 3,884
17,138 2,689
15,406 2,417
1,833 288
188,493 29,575
881,406 138,293
98,264,001 15,417,622
121,342,740 19,038,676
(23,078,739) (3,621,054)
98,264,001 15,417,622
881,245,877
89,794 9,814
91,585,112
8,418,487 10.88 1,707

156.90
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24,568 3,855
24,568 3,855
823,441 129,198
354,713 55,654
76,010 11,926
38,005 5,963
37,524 5,888
19,007 2,982
12,671 1,988
104,166 16,344
1,465,537 229,943
(1,440,969) (226,088)
(753,688) (118,254)
(1,631,400) (255,967)
(2,385,088) (374,220)

(66,079,544)
322,697

(10,367,880)
50,631

(65,756,847)

(10,317,249)

(68,141,935)

(10,691,470)

(69,582,904)

(10,917,558)
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TRP

2022 12 31

(1,440,969)
(2,385,088)
(65,756,847)

(226,088)
(374,220)
(10,317,249)

(69,582,904)

(10,917,558)

25,675 2,016,818 316,439
1,782,626 24,692,702 3,874,285
39,850 (4,449,035) (698,054)
2,482,685 (32,689,980) (5,129,058)
(10,429, 495) (1,636,388)

(80,012,399) (12,553,945)

178,276,400 27,971,567

98,264,001 15,417,622

156.90
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2018 28
UFJ
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946

GAAP
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NAV

GAAP
GAAP

ASU  2015-07

2022 12 31

2022 12 31

157,201 157,201
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157,201 157,201
2022 12 31
(15,406) (15,406)
(15,406) (15,406)
2022 12 31
FASB ASC 740
50
71,607 1,448
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4,894,181 27 1,631,112
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sicav
SICAV us
SICAV 2010 12 17
ucITS
CSSF
&P 400
)
)
) ) )
15,101,340 163,175,060 178,276,400
2,016,818 24,692,702 26,709,520
(4,449,035)  (32,689,980)  (37,139,015)
(5,990,234)  (63,592,670)  (69,582,904)
6,678,889 91,585,112 98,264,001
103,969 9,118,546 9,222,515
25,675 1,782,626 1,808,301
(39,850)  (2,482,685)  (2,522,535)
89,794 8,418,487 8,508,281
74.38 10.88
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2019
ASC 815-10-50
a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2022 12 31 MNA
MNA
o
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 491 (491)
Citi PB 156,710 (14,600) 142,110
157,201 (15,091) 142,110
2022 12 31 MNA
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MNA
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806 (491) 315
14,600 (14,600)
15,406 (15,091) 315
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2022 12 31
157,201 15,406
2022 12 31
(1,632,560) 322,697
0.28
0.03 2.5 0.25 2.5
0.24 0.22
2022 12 31 354,713 2022 12 31 24,754
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2022 12 31
76,010 2022 12 31 125,568
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0.015

15,000 2022 12 31
19,007 2022 12 31 29,271

0.03
2022 12 31 38,005 2022 12
31 17,138
10
0.65
2022 12 31 823,441 2022 12 31
259,313
11
140,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500

0.65

12
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TRPUS CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
December 31, 2022

ressed n United s Dollar, unless otherwise indic

L
Ittt in Uit ying Fund, o Faes walua (2ot FIED LIT325,386)
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The accompanying rotes e anintegral part of thess Rasncal samments,
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TRPUS CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2022

J{Exprassed in United States Dollar)
Invesbment Inosme:;
Tostal bt dazaeni 2asen
Expannsr
Custribton'y Snin #haa
Wanagarment fises mani
Cuskadian and subead rmnitratoc's fiss R0
Agent cormpany's fos 3E005
Predenioeal Toes 27,54
Trsibis fas 18,107
Trarsfir agart fan 1rsTL
Kb et P— T 1Y
Tistal Enpivrriin LAES IR
et Imvestrent Lostes 13,440,964
Reallzed galrclosses) and dhange In urv ealled appeeclation | depred 2t on)
Faaipod g aermiienish
Imvaatmants Sakes of Ledarkgng Fund (73,588)
Foriign currancy transactons and forsand foreign curancy exchange contracts {1531 4000
Biat risaki e boikes L r i i )
Changen waal od aspraaronidepradation)
Irmvisniaia in Lindid ying Furd {65,075
Fowai g curmancy trand ation s and forward fonaign curmendy eachangs Conracts IET
Pt changs in unrealined depreciabion {05, Fop BTy
Biot riaaliosd and chang min uniaatiEed | oasss and dareciation SR Al mnh
et deoreate bn net assets resulting from operations LT I R

Thd st orm Doy ng nobes iha an inbegral part of theps finan:ial satemantd,
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TRPUS CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IMN MET ASSETS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022
{Expressed In United States Dollar)

Incerase [Ducreae] in Kot Avses froee

Oy atio:
Mt et it ioaas. ush LAMLRESY
Rt rorat eed fonses L TEn Ry
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Capital Trancsmions:
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LPSn s {1, PERERE Lindtsd ALEL IR
Lindes radosmd
MY Madged Class (39,550 Units) .49, 005 )

USD Tass {2, 482,685 Unaz)

Mot decrease |n et isets reudbing Fom capital Brarmadions — IO AT Sk
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Thia accormparying notes e an integral part of thess finan:ial satementa,
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TRPUS CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Forthe Year Ended Decemnber 31, 2022

CRGANIZATION

TRP LS Core Grosth Equity Fund [tha "Fund”] is 8 sedes rust of the Kikko AM Offshore Funids, an open-erded unit st
establishad by a supplemerttal trust desd dated May 14, 2018 (the "Supplamental Trust Deed®], under tha lows of the
Cayman Islands, Mikko AM Offshore Funds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2007 [the “Master
Trust Dewd™], under the laws of the Coyman Islands and is Hoensed with the Cayman ishands Mormtary Authority pursaant
to-section H1)ja) of the Mutuad Funds Law [ 2004 Revigonk The Fund commenced operations on June 18, 2018

Thee Fund's acsets are managed on a doy-to-day basis by Nido AM Global Cayman Limited [ the “Manager™). The Manager
delagstas imvestmant mansgamant duties to Micko Assat Management Co, Lid., [the “investment Mansger®). The
Investrmant Manager may delegate responsiblility for the management of the Imvestment andire-investment of certaln parts
of the Fund's investment portfdio to other investment managers. The admiristration of the Fund is delegated to Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co (the “Custedian” and “Sub-Adrminisratee” |, alimited partnership crganized under tha liws of the
State of Mew York,

The imrestrent ob jective of the Fund is to achi eve growth inthe value of units over the lang termn by imsesting into @ fund,
which invests malnly i a dverdfled portfollo of stocks of large and medium gred “blus chip® companies in the Urited
SatEs

Under the terms of the Supplamental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, ArstCaribb ean international Sand and Trus
Cormpany {Cayman) Lirvited [the *Trustes” and the “Administratcr] isneamed a3 Trustes of the Fund.

The Manager appornbed Mitsubighl UFI Momgan Stanley Seosities o, Lid 1o act as Agent Company (the “Agent Company®™ )
and to st & Distributer (the “Distributer”) of Units in Japan,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCES

Thee Fured B5 an Investment Company that follows the accounting and reporting guidance In FASE Accounting Standards
Codifvatien 645,

Use of Estimates
Thee agcompanying fnamclal stacemen ishave been prepared In accordance with accounting principles generally accepred in
the Unitad States of Amenics (*LLS GAAFT). The preparation of fingncid statementsin aocor dance with U5 GAAP requires
the Fund's manag, it b Mmikes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Habdides and
disclomres of contingent assets and |fabilides at the date of the financial staternents and the reported amounts of revenues
and exparies during the reporting period. Actual results, including the Wdmate amnount realiped upon the sale of Falr valued
Imvestrrents, coulld differ from those estimates and such differences may be sigrificant.

Bovir of Accounting

Security and contractual ransactions are recorded on @ Tradefcontract-date besis, Interest income is recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of ary applicable withholding tax interest expense and cther expensesare recorded on an acorual
basis, Reatiped gains and losses from seourty transactions are computed on the basls of the sverage cost of the securities
sold o covered. (hanges In the valuation of frvestments are recorded in the Statermnent of Operations as wvealized
eppradation or dapreciation,

Valuetion of lnvestmants

Fvestrments In other Investment companies (“hedge funds™) are valued on the basls of the Net Asset Value [“NANT) per
shade s reported by the adminisratons of these entities af tha messurermsant date baced upon peficies and procedures
adopted by the Fund. I cases where the Fund coufd in the normal course of business redeam {ts underhying investmant,
such inmvesiresnts ane generally valuad at the net ssser valustions provided by the sdministratons of dhose sntities,

In casers where the Fund is unasbile 1o redesrn its underhfing irvestment, sudh investments in portfelio fund s are alse valued
o the net amet valuations provided by the adrminisrators of those entities, provided that the undedying portfalio lunds
hawse caltulated their net asset valuations in sccordances with actounting San gusdl which is applicable 1o
[restrrent companies . g. Imvestmen tswdthen suich underlying imvestmant companies have bean fafr valued in accordance
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

SUBAMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [sontinuad)

Vatuetion of Investrnen s [continwed)
with gpplicable LS GALT, unless the Investmant Mansger datermine. that such 8 valuation would not be the most
mppropriste indicator of fair value, inwhich cases the irvestmeent would be fair valued by the Invesement Manager,

n accordancs with the aahoritative guiderte on fair value messrements and disclosures undar LS GAAP, tha Fund
diisciorses the fair value of I'ts imvestrmants in a hierardhy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation technigues used t meawra
the fnir value, The hiscarchy gives the bighest priority tovaluations based upen unadjusted quoted pricesin sctive markets
ler idenitical assets or Eabilives{Level 1 massuremant] s the bowest priceity to valustions basedupon uncbsensable inputs
that are sgrificant po tha valuation {Level 3 mesarements), The guidences establishes thes levals of the lair value hisrardry
5 fodl s

+  Lewsl 1= Inputs that refect unadiu sted quoted prices in active markets for identical investments that the Fund
has the ability to acoeis ak the measurament date;

*  Lewel 1 = Inputs ot than quoted prices that are significant and coservable for the asset or Fability either
directly or indrectly, Including Inputs in markets that arenot considered to be active;

= Lewsl 3—inputs that are sgreficant sndunobssrvable,

nputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broady reler to the sssumptions that market participants
e po Mk valuaton decison s, induding sssemp Gons about risk nputs may includs price information, specific and broad
oredit data, liquidity statistics, and othar factors. A finandal instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is bised upon
the lowest lavel of ary input that is sgnificant 1o the Tar value masurement, Howsyer, the determination of witet
constinutes “observable” requires signifizant judgment by the Immestrment Manager. The Investment Manager considaers
cbsarvable data to be marker dats which is readily svalable, ragul sty distributed or updared, reliable and veriSable, not
propeieany, and provided by independent sources that are actively irvolved in the relavant market. The categonination of a
Firsancial instrument withén the herarchy s based upon the pricing transparency of the Instrument and d oes nok nescessarly
corraspond [0 the irvestrmeent Manager s perosived riscof thal instrument,

Erpastrreans oot valu es ans based on the quoted markat prices in sctive markers, and therafor e class fiad withen Level 1,
weotd include actively traded sguities, osrtain LS government and sovarsign cbligations, and certain monay market
searitien The investment Manager would not adjust the quoted price for mech instruments, even in stuations where the
Fund held alarge postion and a sale could ressonably impact the quoted price.

Ivestrrants that trade in markets that & not considersd to be active, but are valwed bated on quoted mardket prices,
dealer quotations or altarmative pricing sounces supparbed by observable inputs are clossifed within Level 2. Thesa include
Imvestrrentgrade debt ssorties, short-term imvestments and forward foreign cummency exchange contracts. As Level 2
rvestmeants include positions that are not raded In active markets andfor ane subject to transfer restrictions, valuations
rriny bee acfuisted toreflect illiguidity andfor non-transfer sbility, which are generally based on svslable market information,

vestroents dassified within Level 3 have signifcant uncbseresble inputs, as they would trade infrequently. Level 3
instrurments would indude asset-badosd securides and collateralized mortgage cbiigations. As obsenable prices are not
avalinble for thoss securities, the Fund would use valustion tachnigues b derive the Eair value,

The inputs or methodaogy used for waluing securities are not necessanly an indication of the risk associated with investing
fn those sacurities

I meondancos with ASL 200507, the Furd' simvestrment in other investment companies hasmot been categorized in the Tar
walie hiararchy nee in aroll forwerd of investrment acthity.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

SUBAMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [sontinuad)

Vatuetion of Investnen s [continwed)

The followiing tabl e prasants the finandal instruments carried on the Statermant of Assats snd Lisbilites by caption and by
el withen the valuation hisrarchy 8s of Decernber 31, 2022, Further classifications of the fnareid instruments are
presantad in the Portfalicof vestmenta

Anpes 5t Palr Value Fair value &
breell Lrveld Level 3 Beensher 33, 3077
Forward Forasgn Tumency
Ewchange Conkracts v - st 157,201 L5t - 157,20
Tetal [ - UsD 157,200 5D - =5 157,20
Liakilities ot Fair Value Fale Value 2
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Oecensber 11, 3087
Forward Foregn Cumency
Lazhange Confirachy LD - LD §15,008) B0 - LD 15,008]
Tokal [ = (7] [ ) - D (5Am

During thieyear ended December 31, 2002, there ware no trarsfars in of cut of Level 3, The Fund's policy is to determing
Il el Assess o Irarsiers 84 8t & year end date,

Farsign Curréncy Translotion

#ussets and llabiEdes hald in currencies cther than Linited States Dollar (LIS07 o the “Functional Curmency™) ane rramiated
to the Functional Currency &t the rate of axchangs prevailing ot the finarcidl statement date, income and expenses are
trandatad at the rate of smchang s prevaling at the date cnwhich the imcorne or Sxpenses i3 imcurred, Reaized and unrealized
pins and | ogses arising on forsign currendy ransactions are induded in the Staterment of Jperationsin the period in which
thay ot

The Fund doss ot fsclabe thet portion of the results of aperations resulting from changes in forsign smcharge rastes on
[rmuestrrants from the fluctuations arising from dhang s in market prices of sacurities held. Such fuctuations are induded
with tha et realiped ared wneeslized gain o | o fom imsestments,

lncome Toxes

Under the currenit lows of the Coyeman [dands, thare ane nolnoorme, withholding, capital gaing or other tees payabla by the
Fund, In certdin jurisdictions ather than the Cryman |diands, forsign taoes may be withhald ar source on dhddends and
[nberess recaivad by the Fund, Capital gains derived by tha Fund In such jelsdiction s generally will be exemnar from foreign
income o withholding tioes 8t source, The Fund intends to conduct its affairs such that it will not be subjact to incorms tax
i army perisdiction, As 8 reslt, no prodsion for income thees his been made in the nancal seerments, Unithalders may
be timed on thar proparticonsbe shire of the Fund's tie bass intome based on thar indiyi dusl drcurmstind e,

The Fund follows the authoritative gudance on acmunting for and disclcsre of uncertainty in i positions {Fnancia
Accounting Standards Board (FASE) - Accounting Standards CodlEcation Ta0), which reguires the Manager to determine
whether a tim podiion of the Fund is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the spplicable taxing
muthority, Including resclution of any refated appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the positon.
For e poditions meeting the more Exely than net threshold, the taxe bensfit recogrized in the financal statements is
reduced by the langest bene Rt that has a greater than fifty percent likelfrood of being realized upon ultimate setdement
with the relesant tiadng muthority. The Manager has determined chay there Is minimal or no effect on the fnancial
seanarnenis being under this auth orthlive guidance,

Forword Foreign Currenry Exchange Controcty

The Fund rmay enter into forwand foreign currency enchange contracts to hedge spainst foreign ourrency sxchings rate riskcs
on al or a porton of non-US0 dencminated irvestments or for gffident portficii o management purposes, When entering
into & forward foreign arrency exchange contrack, the Fund agrees toreceive or daliver a fived quantityof foreign curmency
for an agreed-upon price on an agreed future date. These contracts are walued dally, and the Fund's net equity therein,
representing unrealized sppreciationf[depredation] on the contracts as measmerad by the difference between the forwand
erE%I‘I arrancy exchings rates at the dates of eniry into the contrac s and the forward rates o1 the repocting date, is
inchuded in the Staternent of Assets and Uabilities. Realized and unredized gains and lostes are induded in the Statement
of Cperations,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

SUBAMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [sontinuad)

Thesainstrurmentsimcive marketrisk oredit sk, orbothkinds of rigks, inexcess of the amcunt recognizedin the Statement
of Assets and Uabilites Riskcs arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the tenms of their contracts and
from movermant in cumency and seiurities valpes and interast rates. In addition to the O [evel hadging, the Fund had
reized lowsof US04 448 on 1 forward forelgn ouerency eschange contract during the year with an average notional of LED
71,507 and an avarage tenm (o matunity of 3 days, The Fund had net realized loss.of USD 1,631,112 on 46 forward foreign
currency euchange contracts held at the 1PY Hedged Class level during the year with an average notional of USD4,894,181
ol i awerag e berm to mabuniny of 17 days,

Ceph snd Fors go Correns’
Cachy s Foeaign ou rrency comprises ol cumancy hald with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co,, sed avsrmight and other short
term placements with cther finamcial imssitutions,

INVESTMENT IN THE UNDERLY IN GFUND

Tha Furd shall primarily irvest in shares of LS Blue Ohip Equity Fund jthe “Underiying Fund®), a sub-fund of T, Rowe Price
Funds SICAV, & soddtd dlinvestisserment b capital variable (*SICAV] establishad under the laws of Lusernbourg. The SICAY
qualifies a5 an Undertadng fior Collective imvestrment In Transferable Securities [ "UCITS®) under Part 1 of the Lunembourg
low of Decernbar 17, 2000 on wnder takdrg s for collesctive irmestroent {the *2010 Law™) and isregistered on the offical st of
collective inveshrent under taldng s maintained by the Commission de Surwelllance du Sectewr Fnander (*29597)

The ohjective of the Underlying Fund I5 toinorease the vale of its shares, over the long term through growth in the vahue
of it imsastments, by imvesting mainly in & dverdSed portatio of stacks of large and miadium sived "blus chip® companies
i the Uinited Stanes,

Spedfically, the Undedying Fund Imeests primarity in equity and equityrdated secudties of companies that are dther
incorporated in the United States of America or conduct most of their business there, that have a market capitalisation
egual toor greater than the companies in the Russell Mid-cap Index or SEF Mid-cap 400 index, and that have a leading
rrarkar position, seasoned managemant end sirong Fnancal fundamentals. Types of secunites mirginciuds comrenon stocks,
preferred stocks, warrants, American Depository Recelpts [“ADRS®), Eurcpean Depository Recelprs [(EDAS") and Global
Depository Recsipts (*GDRT),

I ewling 10 achieve the Underbdng Fund's chjective the Underlying Furd may also frvest, on an andllary bas's, in other
ofgible securities a5 descrited in its prospectus, this may include eligible securitdes from other countries, to mone than a
lirrdted extent

The Underlying, Fund mary use derivatives for hedging and ¢ffident portfolio management.

The Underlying Fund's finandal staterments are prepared under generally accepted accounting principles in Luxembourg
and the accounting polides of the Uinderhding Funds are substantially consistent with those of the Fund, Units of the
Undertying Fund may be redeerned on each Busness Day.

UNITS

Tha net assets of the Fund are dividad Into JPY Hedged Olass Urits and LSO Oass Units, The Units are denominated in
laparass Yen and Undted States Dolfar, JPY Class Urits and LSO Class Units are svaiable to an aligitle imvestor wha s amy
parson, corpaoration or sntipwhichisnot §i) 8 "US Investors” jasdalined balow); (i @ person of entity residentor domicled
in the Cayrnan (dands {excluding any chject of a charitable trust or power or an exempted or noneresident Cayman isands
eampanyl: (il unable 1o subseribe for or hald Urits without vislating applicable tews; and [ 8 custodian, nominee, or
trustese for any person, corporation or entity desoribed in i} to {iil) abowve, o such other persong, coporations o entities as
deterrmined from time to Hrme by the Manager, with the spproval of the Trustes,

Whily all or substantially all of the apsets of the Fund may be held in LS Dollars, Tt is intended for the Fund to enter into
hedging arangaments for the benafit of JPY Hadged Oess Urdts, which are dencminated in lapaness Yen, Those
arangarrentswil be to hadge agairst adverse movemenis of the curency of denomination of the investments I the Serles
Trust ralative to Fan, Ay profits, gans, losses, costs, inctene and smpanditure associsted with such hedging arrangements
will bebomeby IPY Hedged Oass Units,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

UNITS [2entinu b

Fer theyear ended Decamber 11, 2022, thanetional exposure on the I PY Hedged Oass forward eurrency exchargs contracts
approaimated the averags nat atsets for IPY Hedgad Olass baing nat [ong JPY and short USOL Opan contracts at yeaar snd
are disclosed in the Portfolio of Irvestrments.

Tha Marsager may dsterrnins to isaue one of more classesof Units of the Fund without price notice o of written consmi of
the Lnithalders

At of the net amets attributable bo ) FY Hedged Jass Units and LEDClass Units are hedd by one Uinithalder.

1P d Class US0 Dt Total Fund

Balanci e Dacomber 31, 2080 WD 15000340 USD DERATSO60 LSO ITRITAADD
Sabtaceiptannd, dusing tha yaar 2,006,018 4,590,708 26109520
Radergtiong doring tha yaa {440, 145 {33 EE 80 ETLROMS
Pt dicrinmsir in ra aisets At g From oparations {5, i, 252 TSR0} {542 504)
Riirt Asnats o Dationibegr 31, 2007 A0 GETREEY W0 SRS USD  SJBLIOL
Kumbsr o Linds in ssue B Decembior 31, 7021 103,965 5,118,546 9332515
Lenis inuard dharing Ehat yaar AT 1, e 1B08.3m
Linits riedeismid during the year §35.8500 ATEH) [2.592,5%5
Mumber sfilings in b 0 Dacember X1, 2007 TR HallEART B508, 201
Nart Assat Valae par Unit ot December 31, 7002 (B3] TA LSO e

Subscriptions for Units
LED Clans Unitsweere subseribad Tor by Eligibile Irmwstors diring the nitid Offer Pariod ot the inftial purdhese prics of LED
1000 per Unit. PY Hedged Class Units were subscribed for by Eligible inwestors during the infta Offer Perdod at the initial
purchass price of IPY 10,000 par Lt The initial Offer Perod commencad on lune 18, 2018 and ended on June 27, 2018 In
addithon tothe subscription price, the applicant shall pay a siles charge calculated atup to 3% [exduding any tan applicable)
of the purchases price, 1o the Distribubor, There wane no Salet charges paid during the year ended December 31, 2022

Curing the Initid Offer Period, the minimom subscription {or USD Cess Units per subscriber was 10 Lits o maore, and in
rrudtiples of 1 Linit thersafter. During the Initial Offer Period, the minimuem indtfa subsoipton for IPY Hedged Qass Units
per subsoriber was 1 Linft or more, and inmuitiples of 1 Uinits theraafter,

O and after the nitial Oosing Day, B mindmuem subséription for LS00 ass Units per Unithald e |3 athar 10 Unitdor mare,
and In multiples of 0,001 Units thereafter or USD 100, and in muftiples of USD 0,01 thereafter, On and after the initial
Oosing Dy, the miiminum sub Soip tion for 1FY Hadged Class Units per Uritholder iseither 1 Unitor more, aadin mudtiphes
of 0.001 Units therealter or JFY 110,000 and in multiples of 1Y § therealter.

The Maomager may waive or change the minfmum Inftial and additonad subscription amounts set forth above in its sole
disor=tion Fom ime b Hme

Uit Redemptions

Ther Fund recognizes redemptions In accordance with the authoritative puidance on distinguishing Eabllites from equity,
Redermptions, whether exprassed as United States Dollar, laparess Yen or Linits, are recogresed os Babllites when each of
the lapaness Yen and United States Dollar Undt amounts reguested in the redempfon netice becomes flaed, which generally
PRy Cocur @ither B the trne of dhe recsipt of the notios, of on the last day of @ fiscel year, depending on the: nature of the
feguest. Az A fesull, rﬂmﬂﬁw:bﬁdﬂmhﬂafhm,htbﬁd upon e end net asets boa raflacted a8
radarotons payable ar December 31, 2023, Thens wers LUED 171,271 of rederrpiions payebl e 53 ar Decamber 31, 3022
indhiaded as Fayable for Units redesmead in the Sraterment of Assets and Lisbilites.

Fepurchore of Units
Units rrsy b repurchased at the cption of Unitholders on each Repurchase Day [meens sach Vaustion Day, of such cther
day o days a5 the Manager may from tirne 1o dme deterrring in respect of the Senles Trust),

Unitholders wishing 1o have Units repurchased must send a complened Repurchass Nobics 1o the Distributor 50 86 o be
received by the Distributor nolater than 300 pom. [Tokopo mel on the relevant Repurchase Doy, The Oisboibutor will send
the cormpleted Repurchase Notices to the Sub-Administrator by no later than 6:00 pow, (Tokys tms) on the reevant
Repurchase Doy or by such other time aa the Sub-Administrator may in amy particular cace determine.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

UNITS [2entinu b

FEepurchose of Units [continaed )

If the relevant Repurchase Notfos is not recelved by the Sub-Administrator by the rdlevant fme, the Repurchase Motcewdll
b bl caser wnlil| thee next Repurchase Day and Unitswil then be redesrmed BT tha relsvant rapurchise prices spplicable on
that Repurchase Dary, b the event sither the day after the relevent Dealing Day or the day falling e daysalver the relevant
Diealirg Dy in & day o wihich Banks o steck sxdhang =i in lapan are not dpen lor normal businsss, any Repurchass Natice
recsived on such Dealing Day, shall not be acespted and instead, wil be acoepted on the next Dealing Dy,

A Repurchase Notfos, onot given, is revocabie,

Compulrary Redemption

In ther sent thist the Trustes o the Menager shall determins that sy Units of sy dass of 8 Fund aee baing held by or for
the banefit of a person who is not an Bigible mvestor for such Fund o that sech holding weould couse the Trust or the Fund
o be required to register, be subject to tax or violate the laws of ary jurisdiction, or if the Trustes o the Manager has
ressen to doubt the lagitimacy of the source of monies wed 1o fund the sbscription of purchass of such Units, o for
whteper raason [which may not be Ficlosed by the Trustes or the Manager to Unitholders] that the Trustes o the
Manager considers Bppropriate ot its absclute dscretion having regerd to the interests of the Unitholders of the relevant
Qass or the Unitholders of the Fund as a whole, then the Manager, after consultation with the Trustes, may direct the
cldar tharaol to sell {suljact to the provisions describedbel ow in the ssction headed *Transler of Units™) such Units within
10 daeys and provide o the Trustes and the Manager evidence of such sale, faling which the Manager may redsen wich
Unita,

Termination of the Fund
Lipon termination, the Manager will redize ol the assets of the Fund, and after payding out or retaining adequate provision
for all Habllitdes properly payable and retaining prowision for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall distribute the
proceads of that redization to the Unithodders propor fionately to their respective interests in the Fund as of the date of
erminadion of the Fund,

Dirtribo tions to Unitholdes

The Manager may, from tGme bo time, in its sole dsoretion, dedare distributions from May 2019, Cistribution will be
dedarad snruslly on each Distribution Record Date and caltulated on asch Ex-Distribution Date, Distribution Period is &
period commimndng from the calendar day following the preceding Distribution Record Date and ending on and including
the Distribution Record Date. The distributions will be pad on the relevant Distibution Payrnant Date, provided that such
amount (if amy) dedared with respect to the relevant Oass of Unitsin respect of the applicable Distribu tion Peviod shall only
be paid out of the Fund's net incame, rédized and unrsalized capitdl gains and &y distributable Tunds of the Fund
anributable o sudy Oass of Linits os deparminad by the Manager,

The declar ation of distributions to Unitholders reduces the Class Level Met Asset Value per Unit without any Comesponding
change [ the numnbser of Class Level Units per Linfthalder, Thisresults in @ Undtholder's overall investmen tin the Fund being
raduced. in sddition, ey diarbutions duning & period which ire in excess of the Fund’s netintresss in net sssets reslting
frosm cparations results in @ portion of the distribution baing return of cepial.

The eereaet of diseributions, if amy, will be datsrrnired by the Managsr in it sole disretion, and no repressntation or
guaran ey [5 made that adsiribution wil be made in respect of sach or ary Distribuaion Parlod,

Copitalization

The Met Asset Value per Uit Is caloudated for each Dealing Day feach Valuation Day, or such cther day or days s the
Managar rasy fream time to dme decerralne in respact of the Fund), by diiding the dffecencs invalus benwesn the Fund's
agnets and llehakdes (including acorued fees and expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units cutstanding.

Th Trust Desd stpulates that tha number of Units to be issued In the Fund shall be unlinedted s the Manager shall
devererine and shall bewitheut par valus,

DERNATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUBAENTS
Actounting Standaed Codification [ASCH B15-10-50 requires disdom res about derivative instrurments and hedging sctivities
It requires that the Fund disdose: a) how and whry an entity wses derivative instruments, b} how derivative instroments and

ralatad hadged ibenms are accounted for and €] how derhvative instruments and rdated hadged iterms affect an etity's
financial position, financial performanoe and cash flows.
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TRPUS CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Forthe Year Ended Decemnber 31, 2022

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [eontinisd)

The Fund transacts forward derfvative Instrurments primanlty for hedging purposes with each instrument’s primany rise
apoture bang foreign exchange risge. The forward foreign cuemency exchange contracts beld by the Fund do not qualify &
hedges for acounting purposes under the requiremsnts of ASC 315 The fair value of these dervative instruments is
indudedin the Staterment of Assets and Liabdliteswith changesin falr value reflected as redized gainaf losses) or net change
i ure eadized sppraciation){depraciation) on derivatives within the Statsrment of Operations (Note 2),

The Fund may enter Into an Intermationa Swaps and Dedwative Assodation, Inc Master Agresment (508 Master
dgreement®] with its countenparties in order to mitigate counterparty rise The GOA Master Agreement is typically
nagotated by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-lateral terms and condidons for all subseguent derivative
ransationa The IS0A Master Agresment allows for the neming of all amounts owed o or dues from counterparey into 8
srgle net payment 1 @ credic event or default should oo,

Thoe Fursd e el tard to not offsst falr value recsivables and pavablas for derlvaitiee contracts on the Face of the Statement
of Assets and Linbilities,

Bt Dacamber 11, 2022 ths Fund had anterad into the following dadvative ssets by countenp ity net of amounts svalable
lor cifper under @ Masher Natting Agraamsnt {“MMNA"] and net of ary collaterad received by the Fund:

twathve Sasets bk ] th Canh Kot Arncunt of
Cpasvbe rparty Subjectto s MA  Avallsble for Offort Collateral Becebed Collateral Recehad  Derivathe Aot
ot Brothar Hamriman & Co L 450 LED (451 LA Lt — sl =
Gt PR — 156710 {14,600} = et 182110
Tl L) 157,201 Ush 1%5,0491) UsD ~UsD ~ LSO 147,110

it Decernber 31, 2022 the Fund had entered into the following derivative Eabilities by counterparty net of amounts
iendiabile for of fet un der 8 MR and net of ary coffatersl pledged by the Fund:

Derivaghe Bt Arnount of
Cinanteguarty Lighdities Derivathes Morreath Cath Derbuithve

Stabifect 0o 8 MR Available for Offier Colliferal Mledged  Colluteral Pledged Lialdltied |

Brgwm Brgthin Hierimen & G, LBD L U NLE =Rl —hl x5
it P 14500 {14,008 - - e
Tkl Uiy LRA0 IS0 (15,041 ) WD =S ] ns

N st s gl R re B0 ik ol D aatls Ao Ehe 0o unter oty o the eveed of ol sl

At Decernber 31, 20332 the Fund had enteredinge the ol cwing dacivatives:

BuietDeheatbees lakilice Derbigives

Diervartives Statensent SEatErnEnt

Hor &ccourded for a6 of Asswts and e Baawes and

Hdging et ruere g Liakilithe1 Locstion B air ke Liskilitiet Location Falr Valkue

Forwied foraign durrangy  Linmdabinad Jooeacition Linraalis od digrogation

g (orArdts oo forward Farign o Forward fviagn

[Currancy Rask] LarTendy ddrangn Lsn 157200 currency sschangs Lsn 15406
tanhrach Loertraits

The effect of derdwtive mstrum ants on the Satemant of Operations for the vawr andad Decernber 18, 20232

Dirivatives het

Rorounted Lo 3t ion of Eealiped Change in Unrealized

fos 2z Hedging Galm o (Lo Galner [Lei) Appredation o (Depeedation) om
irte L peL 6 oy Db Bl on Derbeatives Dirivaithenl

Wik roaliced loas on farward foragn
Forweird foraign durmendy  Currimiy @thangs corbas;
FhangE Lot e chaneinurrdaisad appraciation on {poward
[Curmimity Kiskj Fioringn Currinty inthangs tortrasts Ll (LEILSE0Y  LSD ATLEST
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TRP US CORE GROMWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The Manager is entited to receives out of the ssets of the Fund a management fes of a toba of up bo OU2ER per annum
{003 % per annum in respect of the fee for the Manager and 0, 25% per annum for the portfon of the Net Asset Valus up to
LED 250 rallion, 0.24% par arrum for the porticen of the Mat Asset Value ower LISD 250 million up to LISD 500 million snd
3.23% per anrum for the portion of the Met AssetVialue ower USD 500 millon inrespect of fee for the Irvestment Manager )
of the Nat Asset Value soerued on, and caltul sted 58 8, each Valuation Dy and payable monthly in arresrs in addition, the
Manager is also entifed to be relmburssd out of the assers of the Fund for ary expenses incured by it in the  proper
perforrrance of its powars snd duties 0% permitied undsr the Master Trust Deed,

Luring the year ended Decenber 31, 2021, the Monager earned fees of USD 354,713, of which USD 24,754 5 stil
caststanckng a5 of Decerrber 31, 2022,

Thea Marugor willl pay the fees of the Irvestrent Manasger out of ts faes, The imstment Manegar will be responsible for
paing the fees of any of its delegates or other parties appointed by the Imeestment Manager 1o perform [is functions in
respact of the Fund; provdded, howsyver, the investrent Manager may charge & ransacion fes on the subscripfons and
redemptions of shares of the Underlying Fund,

CUETODIAN AND SUB-ADMINIETRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has a amstody and accounting agreament with Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. (the *Custedian”™ and “Suib-
Administrator®) for which the Custodian receives a fee caloudated and pald monthly based on tofal amsats and ramsacion

walume,

The Custodian nd Sub-Administrator is entifad to receive cut of the smats of the Fund & sdministration fee (induding
transfer agent fee) on the Met Asset Value acorued on, and caloulated a5 at, sach Valuation Dy at the foll owing annual rate:
- 00T Feup to [and induding) L0 250million;

-0U0EN U b [and inciuding) USD 500 million;

<005 cuer LSD 500 mdllizn,

Such administration fee is payabie monthly in arrears, and subject o the minimem annual fee of L&D &0,000. The Sub-
Adrinistrataris olsoentided toreceive cutof the pssets of the Fund feesfor currency administration and execution servces
at the rate of (U155 per annum of the Met Asset Value of the relesant Unit Cass, subject to the minimum annual fee of LISD
50,000, In addition, tha Custodian and Sub-Adminfarator is sles entitied 1o receive customary sifiskesping faet and
transaction charges All cut-of-podeet expenses of the Justodian and Sdb-Admindstrator shall afso be borne by the Fund,
During the yasr anded Decanber 11, 20232, the Custodion and Sub-Adrministrater sarmed fees of USD 76,010, of whith LISD
125,568 is still cutstanding a3 of Decemiper 31, 2022

TRUSTEE FEES AND ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

Thee Trustes s entitled to receive cut of the assets of the Fund a combined fee af the rates of 007 5% per annum of the Nat
At Valiet accrued on, and caloulated as a1, eadh Vahation Day and payable gquartery in amears, subject 1o a minimum
ol Fee of USD 15,000, During the year ended Decernber 31, 2022, the Trustee samed fees of USD 19,007, of which USD
26271 i5 il cunstanding as of December 31, 2022,

AGENT COMPANTY'S FEES

The Agent Companmy s entitled to recave cut of theassets of the Fund a fes at the rate of 0039 per anmum of e Net Asset
Value accrued on, and calculated a5 af, each Vialuation Day and payable quarterly In arvears, During the year ended
Cecernber 21, 2022, the Agent earned fees of URD 28005, of which USD 17,138 is <t outstanding as of December 21, 3032,

DISTRIBUTICR'S FEES

The Distributor is entitled o receive cut of the assets of the Fund a fee ot the rabe of Q0653 per anmum of the Net Assat
Value accrued on, and calcdated as af, each Valustion Day and payable quarterty In arears During the year ended
Dcernber 31, 2033, the Distributors eamed fees of US0ER 3441, of which L0 258,313 s sl outstandirg as of December
11, 2022
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TRPUS CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Forthe Year Ended Decemnber 31, 2022

OTHER FEES AMD EXPEMSES

Thea costsand exp e in connection with the establishrment of the Fund and the offaring of the Unit, together with the
estabiishrent of the Trust, induding the cotts and euparses of prapaing and printing any prospectus or sxplanatony
Brochures reguined, are estimated 1o amount 1o spproaimately USD 180,000, Such conts and expenses will be amortised
within the first fve [5} finencial years of the Fund uniess the Trustee decides that some other method shall be applied. The
Adrinistrater ressives USD 1,500 per anrum for FATCA £ ORS complisnes senices.

Thea Underiying, Fund is entited to recsive out of the sesets of the Underiying Fund, & fee at the rate of 0.65% per snnum of
the Net Assat Vaiua of the Underlying Fund,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Tha Fund's activities esp06e it toa varlety of Anancial riges: market risk finduding price rig, nterest rate risk, and ¢urrency
risk), eradit risk and liguidiny risk,

Market Risk
Al e strmants present a nisk of | oss of capival, The Ivestmant Manager moderates this risk through a carshl selection of
securitiesand cther Enancid instruments

Thes Funel' s iv1iestrn ent rranagement process s describad in Nate 1, The prirmary determinant of tha Fund’s sbilitg to meset
its chjective of mid to long term capital apprecistion while eaming income is depandent on the performance of the
[rmestrrant in tha Uindarhying Fund,

The values of the Fund's imestrments are alfected by & nurmber of factors, indieding but not limited to, changesin the wider
aconormy, fnandal and cumency markosts, foreign currency sxchange rates and interest rate movernents. The Fund enters
[nbe forward contracts which to varying degrees repredant b market sk in ewoess of the smount reflacted on the Fund's
Serrent of Assets ard Liabilities, The notonal armcunt of the Torwerd contract represents the extent of the Fund's
partidipation in these fnanca instruments, Market rigks sssociated with such forward contracts arse dus to the possiile
Fravernents in foreign currency exchangs rates urderhing these instrumenta

Orthver market and credit sk inciuda the posabilig that thane may be an flliguid rmarker for the contracts, that the change
in the wales of the contract may not directly comelate with dhanges in the value of the indadying currendes or that the
cunberparty 1o & forwerd contract delaults on its chligation 1o perfonm under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
exposre bo loss due bo counterparty non-performance on open futures, forward's, swap and options contracts is Bmited to
the urresiped appracistion inherent in fuch fnevaal imstrurments which are recognised in the Staterment of Assats and
Linblities,

Credit Risk

Crelit risk represents the potentlal loss that the Fund weould incur if the counterpar ties, Talled to perform purssant o the
termg of their chligatons 1o the Fund, For exchange-rraded coniracts, the exchangs &:ts a4 the counterparty to specfic
ransactions and, therefors, beacs the itk of defivery to and from counterparties of specific positions. The Fund's
Franag areent dos not consider that credit s rdated 1o open darvative contracts will have material adverse effecton the
limancid condition of the Fund,

Mthough the Manager monitons the Custodian and balisves it tobe n sppropriste custodian, there is no guarantes that
O o BTy CursCosdian Thist the Funed ey use Broen gime (o time, will notbacorms insotvent, which could lead tolosses o the
Fund,

‘Wilg both the LS, Bankruptcy Code and the Securites iImestor Protection At of 1570 seek (o probest custormss property
v thar vt of & fallure, irsolyency o ligedation of an inatintion, there is no cartanty that, in the svent of a lefure of an
instinJtion that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund wouldd not incur losses ces o its assers being unavailable for a period
of tirne, witirrately loss than hll recovery of its sssets, or both, Because all of the Fund's cash {3in curstody with a sngle
instination, such logses could be significant and coudd materially Impadr the abillty of the Fund to achisus its invesemant
clbjective, The Fund is subfect to oredit risk 1o the axtent that this insti iution may be unable to TRl s cbligatons to repay
AT G,

Lgui ety Wik

Fivestors should be swere that the value of Unitsreaght [a] s well srise, impestroent in the Fund invalves a degres of rd,
thare can De o Bser ance that the Fund’s imsesomant objective will be achieyed,
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TRPUS CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Forthe Year Ended Decemnber 31, 2022

FANUAN CIAL P SK MANAGERMENT [continsed)

Liguiddity Risk [sontinued]

The Fund is exposed ko daly repurchess of its Units but mansgement believes that the Fund bas suffident resources to
meet the present and foreseeable needs of ts business cperations and, if necessary, the Equidity to fund repurchases and
achieve a market position sppropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position is monitored continually by
rranagement 1o engare that the Fund has the ability bo meet Its cbligations.

The Trustes, after consultation with the Manager, may suspend the fssuance and repurchase of units and payments in
respact of such ransactions in any droumstances wiane the calodation of the Underhyfng Fund's Net Asset Valu e per unit
s aspendiad, The Trustes will inform uritholders of such & srspension 8% soon & practicable after it is imposed o Kifved.
Suibwription appiicatons and repurchase notices cannct be withdrawn duning such suspension and will be procsssed for
the next Dealing date. All Unitholders of the Fund will be prormptly notified in writing of any sech suspension and will be
prompthy notified upon termination of such fspension.

Covranoy Risk

The Unit price of USDOass Unitsis determined in LSD, and the Unit price of JFY Hedged Oass Units is determined in Japanes
Yar while the Fund is denominated in ULS. dollers, The Fund, hower, may imnest a partion, o al of, its msats in cthar
asrendes, o In instruments dercminatesd in non-lapanese Yen of ronelB Dollee curmencies, the prices of whith will be
deterrrined with reference 1o such non-lapaness Yan of non LS Doller currencies, Thevalue of thee Fund s assets will fuctuate
with Jepanese Yen axchange rates aswell msthe price charges of itk irvestrents in thevasicus local markers snd currendas

The Fund dso may utilize options and forward contracts to hedge against currency fluctuations, but there can be no
s ange that such hedging transactionswill be effective, and ®ach techréques entadl costs and additional rsks,

Thee irveestrnent manager monicors tha Fund ‘s cunrendy sxpoRrne on a dally basls.

Dioher Rk

On Febrasry 24, 2001, Russia launchad & military imasion into Likrana, The conflict, which is ongoing o of tha dete that
e fimancial SEaterreents weirs avalable (o be seesd, carmies sigreficant risks for aworld sconormy that hasyet to fully recoyer
from the ireacts of the global COVID-19 pandarnic, Related impacts to gec-political instability, financial market walatity,
and the impdsition of sanctions, may in furn impacdt the entity.

The Marsager and/for ts delegates may Borrow moenies for the acotunt of the Fund provided that it will not Borrow maney
if, a5 @ resdt of guch borrowing, e aggregate amownt of cutstanding bormowings effected on behalf of the Fund would,
irrrnadingely following such borrowing, sxcaed 10% of the value of its ne sssers, save that tis linst may be sxoeedad
temporanly for & pericd not escesding 12 months in special siuations including, without Emitation, a menger of the Fund
with anther sedes trust, irestrent fund o other type of oolbective imestrrsnt schame,

Tiheiari yaper r1icn b v vl during the pesar ansdad (Deceen bar 31, 2022,
COMMITMENT S AND CONTINGENCIES

N the nonmial cowrse of business, the Trustes on Behalf of the Fund may enter Into contracts that contain a warlety of
representatons and warranties andwhich prowide general indemnifications Thegeneral indemnifications apply notonty to
the axtent such representations and warmranties are un rue but also may cover thind parties such as the Fund's Administrator,
Audiner or inestrnent Managar for clairns refated to the svces performed for the Fund, Tha Trestee™s radrium ssponse
under any pich arrangemEntsis Unknown, & esposune only aises o the extent furure claims that have not yet occured are
e agairst the Trustes, Howener, based on axperiance, the Trustes expects the risk of los o be remate,

SUBSECQUENT EVENTS

Mmmnmﬂ‘fmeda subysaquent ven s revisy Up BS May 12, 2023 which is the date the fnancd statermants were
ivaltable tobe ismred,

Efective lanuary 1, 2003 through May 12, 2023, there were subsoriptions of LISD 217, 418 and there ware redemnp bons of
LUB0 1,002 038 in respect of JFY Hedged Class Units. There wene distributions of nil in respect of 197 Hedged Oass Linfts

Effective Januany 1, 2023 through May 12, 2023, there were subscriptions of UISD 2,121,027 and there ware redempiions
of USD § 791,858 in respect of USDOass Linita, There were distribu tons of nil in respectof LSD Oass Urits,

There are no other Sgniflcant svents to report as they refate to the Fund,
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2024
130,895,289.12 20,537,470,863
739,214.15 115,982,700
130,156,074.97 20,421,488,163
6,987,890
63,523
17.78 2,790

14,719
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1,669,846,190
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2023 31
2023 2022
10,387,958 1,629,871 9,431,206 1,479,756
2,439,807 382,806 2,509,480 393,737
12,827,765 2,012,676 11,940,686 1,873,494
1 0.157
1 0.157
12,827,765 2,012,676 11,940,687 1,873,494
1,996,396 313,235 1,984,608 311,385
1,996,396 313,235 1,984,608 311,385
480,000 2023 31

2022 31
480,000 480,000 75,312 480,000 75,312
10,351,369 1,624,130 9,476,079 1,486,797
10,831,369 1,699,442 9,956,079 1,562,109
12,827,765 2,012,676 11,940,687 1,873,494

13

10 22
2023
129332

156.90
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2023 31
2023 2022

12,607,808 1,978,165 17,934,583 2,813,936
(11,446,280)  (1,795,921) (15,915,713)  (2,497,175)
1,161,528 182,244 2,018,870 316,761

(80,923) (12,697) (98,749) (15,494)

1,080,605 169,547 1,920,121 301,267

(205,315) (32,214) (365,000) (57,269)

875,290 137,333 1,555,121 243,998

875,290 137,333 1,555,121 243,998

13

156.90
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( ) «c ) ( )
480,000 75,312 7,920,958

C ) ( ) C )
1,242,798 8,400,958 1,318,110

1,555,121 243,998 1,555,121 243,998
480,000 75,312 9,476,079 1,486,797 9,956,079 1,562,109
875,290 137,333 875,290 137,333

480,000 75,312 10,351,369

1,624,130 10,831,369 1,699,442

13
156.90
2023 31
2023 2022
875,290 137,333 1,555,121 243,998
80,923 12,697 98,749 15,494
205,315 32,214 365,000 57,269
1,161,528 182,244 2,018,871 316,761
222,571 34,921 (132,044) (20,718)
(193,526) (30,364) 171,551 26,916
(152,898) (23,990) (475,422) (74,594)
1,037,675 162,811 1,582,955 248,366
1,037,675 162,811 1,582,955 248,366
9,431,206 1,479,756 7,947,000 1,246,884
(80,923) (12,697) (98,749) (15,494)
10,387,958 1,629,871 9,431,206 1,479,756
13
156.90
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2023 31
309GT
IFRS IFRS
IFRIC 2023

IFRS 1ASB IFRIC

IFRS 1ASB IFRIC

2023 31 10,387,958 3,637,958
12
12

2023 31 2022 31
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2023 2022
42,288 26,931

2023 2022
80,923 98,749

2023 2022
19 2022 19 (205, 315) (365,000)
(205,315) (365,000)
(205,315) (365,000)

2023 31 2022
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2023 2022
1,080,606 1,920,122
19 2022 19
(205,315) (365,000)
(205,315) (365,000)
19.0 19.0
2021 2023 25
2021
2023 2022
1,822,476 2,074,355
547,206 365,000
70,125 70,125
2,439,807 2,509,480
2022 31
2022
100
190
2023 2022
158,831 114,502
194,982 168,009
1,072,268 1,337,007
570,315 365,000
1,996,396 1,984,608
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11
2023 31
2023 31 a
( ) ( )
1,307,294 413,237
5,080,647 416,397
1,994,461 173,046
839,181 66,862
66,598 2,726
106,123
9,394,304 1,072,268
2022 31
2022 31 a
( ) ( )
1,453,679 474,263
7,323,113 520,898
3,429,574 246,312
1,227,939 86,759
110,482 8,865
106,095
13,650,882 1,337,097
(a
(b
(c
2023 31 80,000 2022 80,000
12
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2023
Mete 2023 2022
usb Uspb
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10,387,952 9,431,206
Debtors 7 2.439.807 2,509,480
Tetal Current Assots 12,827,765 11,940,686
MNon-Current Assets
Investment in subsidiary 2 1
Total Non-Current Assets 1
Total Assets 12,827,765 11,540,687
Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities
Creditors 9 1,996,356 1,984 6028
Total Current Liabilities 1,996,396 1,984,608
Equity
Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Company
Share capital (51 par value, 430,000 shares
auvthorized, 420,000 shares issued and 420,000 420,000
outstanding at 31 March 2023 and 2022}
Retained earnings 10,351, 369 9,476,079
Total Equity 10,831,389 9,956,079
Total Liabilities and Equity 12,827,765 11,940,687

The annexed notes from 1 to 13 form an integral part of these financial statements.

These fimancial statements on pages 10 to 22 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised

for issue and signed on its behalf by:

y —
D Cruige - Directar
05 September 2023

Company registered number: 129332
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
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Note 2023 2022
usb ush
Revenue 3 12,607,208 17,934,583
Administrative expensas 111,446,280} [15915.713)
Operating profit 1,161,528 2,018,870
Other expenses g {80,923) {98,749)
Profit before income tax 1,080,605 1,920,121
Income tax & (205,315} {365,000}
Profit after income tax £75,290 1,555,121
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - .
Total comprehensive income for the year 875,290 1,555,121

Allthe Company's operations are classified as continuing.

The annexed notes fram 1 to 13 farm an Integral part of these financial statements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Share Retained
hoA Capital Earnings Toms)
usk usp usD
Balance at 31 March 2021 480,000 7,920,958 B4D0,958
Other comprehensive income far ) 1,555,121 1,555,121
the year
Balance at 31 March 2022 480,000 9,476,079 9,956,079
Other comprehensive income far 475,290 875,290
the year
Balance at 31 March 2023 AB0,000 10,351,369 10,831,369

The annexed notes from 1 to 13 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Note 2023 2022
usD UsD
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit after tax 875,290 1,555,121
Adjustments for
Met foreign exchange loss 5 30923 98,749
Tax charge 205,315 365,000
Operational cash flows befare movements in
wirkiig caphal 1,161,528 2,018,871
Changes in cperating assets and liabilities
Decreasef {Increase) in receivables 222571 {132.044)
{Decreasel/ Increase in payables {183,526} 171,551
Ineome tax paid {152,898) {475,422)
Met Cash Generated from Operating Activities 1,037,675 1,582,955
Met Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,037,675 1,582 955
Cash and cash eguivalents, beginning of the year 5,431,206 7,947,000
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held {20,923} 198,744)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year 10,387,958 9,431 206

The annexed notes from 1 to 13 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

MNote 1 = General Information

Nikke AM Global Caymar Limited [“the Company”) is incorporated and damiciled in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office is PO Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Chureh Street,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The principal activities of the Company during the year were the
pravision of investment advice and investment management services ta third parties and other group
members, These non-statutory financlal statemerts have been prepared to ensure continued
compliance by the Company with the requirements of Chapter 3 of the Overteas Companies
Repulations,

Note 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The principal saceaunting policies adopted are set aut below.

Basls of preparation

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards {UK-adopted IFRS) and IFRIC interpretations applicable to companies reparting
uncer [FRS. As at 31 March 2023, the Company had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had
been Bsued by the International Accounting Stancards Board ("IASB") anc Irternational Fimancial
Reporting Interpretations Committes {"IFRIC"). The accounting policies set out below have been
applied corsistently to all periods presented in these financial statements. IFRSs comprise accounting
stancards issued by the IASE and its predecessor body as well as interpretations issved by the IFRIC
and its predecessor bocy.

The directors have adopted the going concern basis of preparation in preparing these financial
statements for the fallowing reasons: the Company is profitable; the Company has a strang and bighly
liguie balance sheet including cash reserves of 510,387 952 as at 31 March 2023 (53,637,958 post
dividend}, which is adegquate to cover the relatively low-cost base [after excluding sub-advisory fees
which are covered by revenues). The directors have prepared profit forecasts which, together with
the liquid reserves and low cost base, indicate that the Company has sufficient reserves to meet their
liabilities for at least 12 manths from the date of preparing these financial statements.

Based on the above, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adeguate
resources to continue its operations for at least 12 months from the date of these financial statemeants,
Therefore, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these accounts,

New accounting standards adopted
The directors do not consider that any rew accounting standards had 3 material impact on the
Company in the current year.

Measurement convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical eost canvention.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the directars to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts
reported for reverues and expenses during the year. The nature of estimation means that actual
outcomes could differ from those estimates. The assumptions and estimates, which are continuously
reviewed, are based on past experience and ather factors, including expactations regarding likely
cevelopments in the future. At 21 March 2023 and 2022 there were na material estimates or
assumptions.

Operating revenues

Operating revenues include investment management, investment advisory and performance fees,
Qperating revenues are measured at the fair value of the corsideration received or receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, trail fees, VAT and other sales
related taxes,

Irvestment management and advisory fees ane associated charges are recognisec when the services
concernad are rendered. Investment managemeant and advisory fees are calculated as a percentage
of assets under management. Performance fees are recognised in the period in which they become
due and collectable.

Operating expenses
Operating expenses are accounted for when they become payable.

Current and deferred income tax

Tax an the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
statement of comprebensive income except to the extert that it relates to items recognised directly
in aguity, in which case it is recognisad in equity.

Current tax is the expectec tax payable or receivable or the taxable incame or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

The Company may utilise current tax credits anising or losses in other Group entities against its tax
charges.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differerces between the carrying
amounts of assets and labilities in the statement of firarcial position and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax i accounted for using the statement of
firancial position lability methad. Deforred tax liabilities are penerally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recopnised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which decuctible temporary differences can be utilised.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAM LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Foreign currencies
The functional and presertational curmency of the Compamy is US dollars [5).

Trarsactions in currencies other than US collars are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
cenominated in foreign currencies are retranslatac at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date,
Man-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when fair value was determired, Gains and losses
arising on retranslation are included In net profit or loss for the period, except for exchange
diffarences arising an non-monetary assets and labilities where the changes in falr value are
recogrised directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash in banks and in hard and short-term ceposits with an original
maturity of three months ar less and foreign currencies held by the Company. For the purposes of the
cash flow statement, cash anc cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalerts as defined abave,
net of outstanding bank averdrafts.

Financial instruments
The vast majority of the Company's financial instruments are cash and receivables which are measured
at amartised cost.

The Company has evaluated potential credit losses on all financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost. Factors considered in determining whether a default is likely or possible include
whether a paymenrt is overdue {and the length of that period), any known deterioration in the credit
guality of a client/ counterparty or other issues that could adversely affect a client's/ counterparty's
credit guality.

Far financial assets where there is no known issues affecting credit quality, expected credit losses are
calculated based on the losses that are expected to be incurred over a rolling twelve-month period.
Given the nature of the Company's financial assets {ie. mostly cash at bank), there is a very low credit
risk, The Company is also considering the use of money market funds to increase diversification and
further reduce credit risk.

For any financial assets where the contractual payment is more than 30 days past due, the default
position is to assume an ircrease in credit risk. However, default levels in the past have been
immaterial and there were no fee receivables past due as at 31 March 2023,

Acoounts recelvable

Accounts receivable incluce amounts due for management, advisory and performance fees and
amaunts due from customers and others. All accounts receivable are repayable on cemand or within
ore year, They are recorded in the balance sheet at cost, reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amaunts, and they are interest bearing.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAM LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries
Irvestments in subsidiaries are stated in the parent company's balapce sheet at cost less any
provisions for impairment.

At each statement of finarcial position date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
investments to determine whetherthere is any indication that thase assets have suffered impairment,
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the investment iz estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment.

Aceounts payable

Accounts payable include amounts due for sub-advisory services and performance fees and amounts
cue to wendars and others, All accounts payable are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangement entered into, They are payable on cemanc or within one year and are
recorced on the balance sheet at cost. Amourts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest
free and have no fived terms of repayment.

Mote 3 = Revenue from Contracts with Customers

All raverue relates ta the provision of investment advice and investment managemant services and
arises in the Cayman Islands,

MNote 4 — Administrative expense

Administeative expense is stated after charging:

2023 2022
usp usp
Audit fees 42,288 26931
MNote 5 = Other expenses
2023 2022
usp usp
Met fareipn exchange loss 20,923 98.749
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Note 6 = Taxation

Taxes on income for the year erced 21 March 2023 were as follows:
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2023 2022
usp usp
Current Tax
UK corparation tax at 19% [2022: 19%) basad or net
revenus (205,315) [365.000)
Total Current Income Tax Expense {205,315) (265,000)
Total Income Tax Expense (205,215) (365,000)

A reconciliation between the amount of tax expense at the effective statutory rate and taxes on
incame as reflected in continuing operations far the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 is presented

bebow:

Tax Reconciliation

Profit before taxes 1,080,606 1,920,122
Profit multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in

the UK: 19% [2022: 19%) {205,315) [365.000)
Total Income Tax Expense {205,315} {365,000)
Effective tax rate for the year 19.0% 19.0%

I the 2021 Spring Budget, the Governmant announced that from 1 April 2023, the main rate of UK
corporation tax rate will increase to 25%. This was substantively enacted in May 2021 and will have a
consequential effect on the Comparmy's future tax charge. The Company interds to utilise current tax
credit from other entities in the wider Nikko Graup in the year to offset the Campany's current tax

gxpense.

The amount due to affiliates in relation to group tax relief is included as a payable in the statement of

firancial position,

Note 7 = Debtors
2023 2022
usp usD
Accounts receivable 1822476 2,074,355
Corporation tax receivable 547,206 365,000
Accrued income and prepaid expense 70,125 70,125
2,439,807 2,500,480
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

MNote 8 = Investment in Subsidiary

Ar 31 Marnch 2022 the Compary had an investment of 51 in Nikko AM [Cayman] Limited. Subseguenthy
the directors resolved to voluntarily wind up its subsidiary, Nikka AM (Cayman) Limited and it was
deemed to be dissolved by the Assistant Registrant of Companies, Cayman Islands on 2 May 2022,

Mumber, class and

percentage of
Country of Principal shares held by the
Investee incorporation activity Company
ko M cayman o B e
The subsidiany's registered acdress was 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islanas.
Note 9 = Creditors
2023 2022
usp uso
Accrued expenses and deferred income 158,831 114,502
Accounts payable 194,982 168,009
Amounts payable to affiliates 1,072 268 1,337,097
Amounts payable to affiliates — group tax relicf 570,315 365,000
1,996,396 1,984 608

Mote 10 = Financial Risk Factors

The Company's financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents and receivable and payable
balances that arise from its daily operations. All cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost which
is considered to approximate to fair value due to the short term maturity of these financial
instruments, The main risks associated with the Company's financial assets and liabilities are set out
below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk of fimancial loss duee to a counterparty’s failure to hanour its obligation
principally in relation to trarsactions where the Company provides goods or services on deferred
terms and where it invests or deposits surplus cash. The Company do not believe that they are
materially exposed to credit risk as its sales debtors are managed group funds and therefare
maragement and performance fees receivable are governed by its agreements with these funds. To
mitigate any residual risk of these assets failing to be delivered, the Campary ernsure that the terms
of thete agreements in relation to payments of management and perfarmance feas are ackerad to by
manitoring its aged cebtar analysis against the agreec service level agreements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Mote 10 = Financial Risk Factors {continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Company adopts the policy of dealing with custamers of appropriate eredit history. For other
firancial assets, the Comparny acopts the policy of dealing with financial irstitutions and other
counterparties with high credit ratings. There are no financial assets past due anc / or impaired as at
31 march 2023 ana 2022, Tracde receivables are due at least quarterly, and are narmally settled within
30 days of their due aate. There are no ovardue trade receivables at the balance sheet date.

Further, with repard to bark deposits, the Company only depasits morey with approved
counterparties on agreed terms.

Market risk

Market risk for systemic risk} is defined as that risk which is commaon to an entire class of assets or
liabilities whereby their value can fluctuate simply becavse of economic changes or other events that
impact large portions of the market. The Company do not believe that they are exposed to material
market risk as the assets the Campary manage are held by and for the bepefit of furd halders through
separate legal entities.

Currency risk

Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of assets and liabilities cenominated in currencies
other than the functioral currency of the Compary will change in value due to movements in foreign
exchange rates. The Compary is exposed to currency risk arising from cash balarces and fees
receivable in various currencies.

During the year any foreign exchange risk on the Company's fees receivable and pavable is mitigated
by the use of derivative instruments, specifically forward foreign exchange contracts.

The Company's total exposure to currency risk ansing from cash balarces, payables and fees
receivable in ather currencies is 461,277 (2022; 5441903), As at 31 March 2023, had these
currencies strengthened/ weakered by 10% against the USD, the total exposure would have been
lower by approximately $42k (2022: 544k)/ increased by approsimately 551k [2022: £44k),

Liguidity risk and financial sclvency risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its finarcial obligations
as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing this risk is to ensure that it has sufficient
liguicity to meet its liabilities when due, both under rarmal and stressed conditions.

Caplital management

The Company capital position s monitored an an ongoing basis to epsure that it is adecuate. There
are no externally impasec capital reguirements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
MNote 11 = Related Party Transactions

Transactions between the Company and related parties are disclosed below:

Operating Creditor as at 31
Year ended 31 March 2023 Expenses (a) March 2023 (b}
ush usp

Mikko Asset Management Americas, Inc. 1,307,254 413,237
Mikka Asset Management Europe Lod. 5,080,647 416,397
Mikko Asset Management Co., Ltd. 1,594 461 173,046
Mikko Asset Management Asia Ltd, 239,181 66,862
Mikka Asset Maragement Hong Eong 66,598 2,726
Highwater Limited 106,123 -
9,394,304 1,072,268

Operating Creditor as at 31

Year ended 31 March 2022 Eimenias (o) March 2022 (b)

uso usp
Nikko Asset Maragement Americas, Inc. 1,453,673 474,262
Mikka Asset Management Eurape Ltd. 7,323,113 520,898
Mikko Asset Management Co., Ltd, 3.429574 246,312
Mikko Asset Management Asia Led, 1,227.939 26,759
Mikko Asset Management Hong Kang 110,482 2,865
Highwater Limited 106,095

13,650,882 1,337,007

{a} Operating expenses paid to related parties [exclucing Highwater Limited) are payable under
investment maragement agreements and are for fund management services, Operating expenses
paid to Highwater Limiteg relate to director, company secretarial anc other services provided by
Highwater Limited to the Company.

{b] The amounts outstanding, in the above table relate to operating expenses, are unsecured and will
be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No provisions kave been made for
doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

e} Amounts payable to affiliates relating to group tax relief are not incluced in the amounts
outstanding in the above table but are included in the statement of financial position,

Remuneration of directars for the year ended 31 March 2023 was 580,000 [2022: 580,000},

Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd is the intermediate parent company of the Company. Mikko Asset
Management Americas, Inc., Nikko Asset Management Eurape Ltd,, Nikko Asset Management Asia Lt
and MWikko Asset Managemert Hong Kong are fellow subsidiaries of the Company. Nikko Asset
Management Co., Ltd is an indirect share holder of the subsidiaries, Highwater Limited is controlled by
individuals who are Directors of Nikke AM Global Cayman Limited.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Mote 12 = Ultimate Holding Company

The Company's immediate parent is Nikko AM Global Holdings Limited, a company located in the
United Kinpdom. The Comparmy i a subsidiary undertaking of Sumitome Mitsul Trust Haoldings, Inc
which is the ultimate parent company in Japan.

The largest group ir which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Sumitomo
Mitsui Trust Haldings, Ire., 1-1-2 Marunauchi, Chiyada-ku, Tokyo, lapan, The consolidated financial
statements of this group are available to the public kttp:/fwww smth_ip/en)

Note 13 - Subsequent Events

The payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 56,750,000 was made ta its immediate
parent on 7 July 2023,

Operating expenses paid to Highwater Limitec relate to cirector, company secretarial and ather
services provided by Highwater Limited to the Company.
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2023 30
2023 30 2023 3
4,114,915 645,630 10,387,958 1,629,871
1,696,782 266,225 2,439,807 382,806
5,811,697 911,855 12,827,765 2,012,676
5,811,697 911,855 12,827,765 2,012,676
1,247,095 195,669 1,996,396 313,235
1,247,095 195,669 1,996,396 313,235
480,000 2023 30
2023 31
480,000 480,000 75,312 480,000 75,312
4,084,602 640,874 10,351,369 1,624,130
4,564,602 716,186 10,831,369 1,699,442
5,811,697 911,855 12,827,765 2,012,676
10

156.90
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2023 30 2023 31
6,531,640 1,024,814 12,607,808 1,978,165
(5,979, 100) (938,121) (11,446,280)  (1,795,921)
552,540 86,694 1,161,528 182,244
(69,307) (10,874) (80,923) (12,697)
483,233 75,819 1,080,605 169,547
(205,315) (32,214)
483,233 75,819 875,290 137,333
483,233 75,819 875,290 137,333

10

156.90
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480,000 75,312 9,476,079 1,486,797 9,956,079 1,562,109
875,290 137,333 875,290 137,333
480,000 75,312 10,351,369 1,624,130 10,831,369 1,699,442
(6,750,000)  (1,059,075) (6,750,000) (1,059,075)
483,233 75,819 483,233 75,819
480,000 75,312 4,084,602 640,874 4,564,602 716,186
10
156.90
2023 30
2023 30 2023 31
483,233 75,819 875,290 137,333
69,307 10,874 80,923 12,697
205,315 32,214
552,540 86,694 1,161,528 182,244
743,025 116,581 222,571 34,921
(749,301) (117,565) (193,526) (30, 364)
(152,898) (23,990)
546,264 85,709 1,037,675 162,811
546,264 85,709 1,037,675 162,811
10,387,958 1,629,871 9,431,206 1,479,756
(6,750,000)  (1,059,075)
(69,307) (10,874) (80,923) (12,697)
4,114,915 645,630 10,387,958 1,629,871
10
156.90
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20,000 42,288
2023 30 2023 31
69,307 80,923
2023 30 2023 31
2020 10 19
2023 30 2023 31
1,465,210 1,822,476
182,206 547,206
49,366 70,125
1,696,782 2,439,807
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126,832 158,831

212,256 194,982

908,007 1,072,268

570,315

1,247,095 1,996,396
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Independent auditor®s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the
Trustee of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2023, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
What we have audited
The Fund s financial statements comprise:

the statement of assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2023;

the portfolio of investments as at December 31, 2023;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor =s responsibilities for

the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to this
evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Fund.

Auditor s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor ™s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund ”s ability to continue as a going concern.
IT we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor ”s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for FirstCaribbean International
Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as Trustee of the Fund in accordance
with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is

shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
May 29, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (““the Company””) for
the year ended 31 March 2023 which comprise the statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 2. The non-statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)”?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 9 June 2023. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going concern period’”).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate; and

we have not identified and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company ”s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud; and

reading Board meeting minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.

179/193



EDINETOOOO
000000 00000000000000(E27078)
OoooO0O0ooO0oooooodood
Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors Report. Our opinion on the
non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the non-statutory financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory financial statements, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor”s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company *s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

05 September 2023
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Independent auditor®s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the
Trustee of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2022, and results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
What we have audited
The Fund s financial statements comprise:

the statement of assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2022;

the portfolio of investments as at December 31, 2022;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor =s responsibilities for

the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to this
evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Fund.

Auditor s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor ™s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund ”s ability to continue as a going concern.
IT we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor ”s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for FirstCaribbean International
Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as Trustee of the Fund in accordance
with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is

shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
May 12, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (““the company””) for the
year ended 31 March 2022 which comprise the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, Company Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-
statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group®s and of the Parent Company ”s affairs as at 31 March
2022 and of the Group®s profit for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)”?) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 21 June 2022. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the
Group and the Company®s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are
no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going
concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going
concern period”?).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Group and Company ”s
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group and Company s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate;

we have not identified, and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group®s
or the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Group or the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

Enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud.

Reading Board meeting minutes.
Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of
fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company®s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company®s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
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Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,

an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors® Report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group®s and the Company s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities
Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been

released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company ”s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.
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Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the

time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

Date: 20 September 2022
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